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ICC Textiles Limited

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Thirtieth (30™) Annual General Meeting of ICC
Textiles Limited will be held at Company’s Registered Office at 242-A, Anand Road,
Upper Mall, Lahore on Tuesday, November 27, 2018 at 10:30 a.m. to transact the
following business:

1. To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on January 27,
2018.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2018 together with the Directors’ and
Auditors’ Reports thereon.

3. To appoint statutory auditors for the year ending June 30, 2019 and to fix
their remuneration.

4. Any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

LAHORE: SHAHID ALI AHMAD
November 06, 2018 Company Secretary
Notes:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
19.11.2018 to 27.11.2018 (both days inclusive). No transfer will be accepted
for registration during this period.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another
member as his/her proxy to attend and vote. Proxies in order to be effective
must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours before the meeting.
The CDC Account Holders are requested to bring their original CNIC and
participant ID to attend the meeting.

3. Shareholders are requested to promptly notify the change in their address, if
any, to the Company’s Shares Registrar M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings
Arcade, 1-K Commercial, Model Town, Lahore.
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CHAIRPERSON’S REVIEW REPORT ON BOARD PERFORMANCE

ICC Textiles Limited (“the Company”) has a seven member Board of Directors (“the
Board”) comprises of competent and able persons having vast experience in corporate
business.

The board is responsible for overall management of the company. Being the highest
management platform in the company, it formulates strategies and policies.

The Composition of the Board is in accordance with the requirements of Companies
Act, 2017 and Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017,
except non appointment of independent director, and its duties, obligations,
responsibilities and rights are as defined therein.

During the financial year 2018 the BOD met eight times. The board itself is compliant
with all regulatory requirements and has acted in accordance with applicable laws and
best practices.

The board, in its meetings, deliberated extensively to arrive at decisions.

The Board has developed a mechanism for annual evaluation of it's own performance, in
compliance with the provisions of Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations 2017. The performance evaluation mechanism facilitates and enables the
members to play an effective role as a coordinated body for ongoing success of the
Company.

The board played an effective role by performing the following functions:

* Ensured effective oversight.

» Supervised overall corporate strategy and financial performance .

» Ensured the quality and appropriateness of financial reporting and the transparency
of disclosures.

* Reviewed effectiveness of internal control system.

* Reviewed implementation of its plan to consolidate company’s resources by selling of
old and obsolete machinery to reduce the debt burden and to curtail overall expense and

liability.
LAHORE: PERVAIZ S. SIDDIQI
November 06, 2018 Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

On behalf of the board of directors, we take pleasure in presenting the audited financial statements
of the company pertaining to the financial year ended on June 30, 2018.

Financial Highlights

The company earned an after tax profit of Rs. 16.034 million and registered a revenue of Rs. 15.363
million as against an after tax profit of Rs. 4.739 million and revenue of Rs. 31.884 million in the
preceding period.

¢ Revenue Rs. 15,363,305
e Gross profit Rs. 3,205,991
e Operating loss Rs. 23,843,503
¢ Finance Cost Rs. 49,638,352
» Change in fair value of investment property Rs. 90,251,125

Profit after tax from continuing operations Rs. 13,821,444
¢ Profit after tax from discontinued operations Rs. 2,212,151
o Total profit after tax Rs. 16,033,595
e Accumulated losses Rs. 741,670,613
e Earning per share Rs. 0.53

Period under Review

Our plan to consolidate the company’s affairs by selling off old and obsolete machinery to reduce our
debt burden and curtailing our overall expense and liability has been almost fully implemented. The
shareholders of the company, considering negative textile sentiments coupled with depressed fabric
demand and high cost of doing business, in the EOGM held on Dec 4, 2017 decided to dispose off
the balance Sulzer dobby looms with accessories, equipment and parts, which were no more
financially viable and were causing continuous losses. It was further decided to focus on generating
rental income to improve the cashflow of the company. Accordingly, further mills premises have been
classified as “Investment property”.

As a result of sponsors fund injection and sale of machinery during the year under review, the bank
borrowings have been fully repaid by April, 2018 by making final payment of Rs. 70.216 million ahead
of schedule.

The following transactions / factors influenced the company’s financial position and performance
during this period:

e There was no sale of cloth as the company has disposed off all its looms.
¢ Company’s rental revenue amounts to Rs. 15.363 million ( 2017: Rs. 9.910 million )

¢ The company has classified its further land and buildings amounting to Rs. 133.419 million,
attributed to sale of textile machinery, as “Investment Property” and change in fair value of the
investment property amounted to Rs. 90.251 million ( 2017: Rs. 100.453 million ) has been
accounted for as income during the year.

o Other income of discontinued business, includes markup waived off by a bank amounting to Rs.
4.910 million, considering final settlement of the finance facility ahead of schedule.

e The company has obtained loan from directors amounting to Rs. 32.008 million. 5
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¢ Other income from discontinued operations, has reduced from Rs. 40.090 million to Rs. 5.765
million ( refer note 36.6).

e The company has disposed off assets from property, plant and equipment and non-current assets
held for sale having written down value of Rs. 76.316 million.

¢ Loan obtained from a director has been rescheduled, as its repayment date and mark-up rate has
been changed ( refer note 7.2.5).

¢ Due to implementation of Companies Act, 2017, certain new disclosures have been incorporated
in these financial statements including inclusion of surplus on revaluation in equity, accordingly
company’s accounting policy has been changed (refer note 4.19 to the financial statements).

Future Strategy and Prospects

While keeping focus on enhancing our revenue by renting out additional covered area of mills
premises, we are monitoring the general textile environment in the context of steps being taken by the
new Government for revival of textile industry & uplifting of exports and devaluation of Pak Rupee.
While RLNG being the substitute for Natural Gas is now available in the country for energy fuel, its
price rose up sharply during the year due to the increase in the brent crude oil price and the
depreciated Pak rupee. As our existing huge textile infrastructure is intact, we may consider to
evaluate and invest in the new textile weaving technology in future.

Moreover, we are in negotiation with various buyers for disposal of our assets classified as held for
sale and spares & loose tools.

Contingencies and commitments

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred
between the end of the financial year to which the statement of financial position relates and the date
of Directors’ Report, except as disclosed in the financial statements.

Outstanding Statutory Dues
There are no outstanding statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which
are outstanding as on June 30, 2018 except for those disclosed in the financial statements.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Your company is a responsible corporate citizen and fully recognizes its responsibility towards
community, employees and environment.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

In order to follow the SECP code of corporate governance, the following statements are given:

Presentation of Financial Statements
The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, fairly present its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity.

Books of Accounts
Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.
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Accounting Policies

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied, except change of accounting policy
regarding surplus on revaluation as detailed in note 4.19 to the financial statements, in preparation of
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements.

Internal Control System
The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

Going Concern

Without qualifying their opinion, Company’s auditors, in their report, have drawn your attention to note
1.2 to the financial statements, which describes that the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by Rs. 107.052 million, and its accumulated losses stood at Rs. 741.671 million. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

These financial statements have, however, been prepared on going concern basis on the grounds
that the company will be able to achieve satisfactory levels of profitability in the future based on plan
drawn up by the management for this purpose and bringing its liabilities to serviceable levels and
availability of the adequate working capital from its lenders and sponsors.

To substantiate its going concern assumption the directors had approved a plan to consolidate the
company’s resources by repaying the banks’ borrowings through sponsors’ loans and sale of
inefficient looms & allied equipment, which were no more financially viable and were causing losses
due to uncertainty in securing industrial gas connection which is essential for cheaper and continuous
gas based electricity. It was further decided to focus on renting out precious vacant factory buildings
and open land to generate revenue. Accordingly company taken steps mentioned in note 1.2 (i —vii )
to the financial statements. The plan has been almost fully implemented i,e bank borrowings have
been fully repaid by April 2018 and company has rented out substantial portion of its factory premises
to generate revenue. Last lot of looms with allied equipment has been disposed off in March 2018,
resulting in availability of more covered area of mills premises for renting out and thus enhancing
revenue in future.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s auditors, in their review report to the members have mentioned regarding non
appointment of independent director(s) as required by the Code of Corporate Governance. The company
is continuing its effort to resolve the issue shortly. There has been no other material departure from the
best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing regulations of stock exchanges.

Operating and Financial Data
Key operating and financial data of last six years is as under:
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SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE
( Rs. in million)
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Revenue :
- Textiles (Rs.) 1,728.459  1,234.768 540.948 443.604 21.974 0.191
- Rental (Rs.) - - - - 9.910 15.363
Net profit/(loss) after tax (Rs.) 2.984 (73.401) (63.965) (211.063) 4.739 16.034
Fixed assets (Rs.) 979.040 933.611 928.706 675.842 242.183 13.454
Investment property (Rs.) - - - - 620.350 844.020
Retained earnings (Rs.) (5635.519) (592.182) (625.212) (816.970) (787.600) (741.671)
Net profit rate 0.2% (5.9%) (11.8%) (47.6%) 14.86% 103.08%
Current ratio 0.35:1 0.28:1 0.34:1 0.21:1 0.28:1 0.35:1
Share breakup value (Rs.):
- Current year 4.44
- Previous years — Restated 8.72 6.45 8.25 0.22 3.87
Earning per share (Rs.) 0.10 (2.45) (2.13) (7.04) 0.16 0.53
Dividend Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Staff Retirement Benefits
Value of unfunded gratuity scheme, based on actuarial valuation, at the period end was Rs. 40.073
million (2017: Rs. 43.218 million).

Board and Committees Meetings
During the year July 2017 to June 2018, eight meetings of the Board of Directors, Seven meetings
of audit committee and One meeting of HR & R committee were held. Attendances by the Directors
were as follows:

Name of Directors Attendance Remarks

Board of Directors
Mr. Javaid S. Siddiqi

Mr. Pervaiz S. Siddiqi
Mrs. Fauzia Javaid

Mr. Salman Javaid Siddiqi
Mr. Asim Pervaiz Siddiqi

Mr. Adnan Javaid Siddiqi
Mr. Arsalan Javaid Siddiqi

W oo 00 ~N O N

Audit Committee

Mr. Salman Javaid Siddiqi
Mr. Pervaiz S. Siddiqi
Mrs. Fauzia Javaid

~N NN

HR & R Committee

Mr. Pervaiz S. Siddiqi 1
Mr. Javaid S. Siddiqi

Mr. Asim Pervaiz Siddiqi 1
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Pattern of Shareholding
The Pattern of shareholding as required by the Code of Corporate Governance is attached with this
report.

Trading of Company Shares
During the financial year there was no trading in shares of the company by Directors, Company
Secretary, CEO, CFO and Executives of the Company (including their spouses and minor children).

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises 3 members, of whom all are non-executive directors.

HR And Remuneration Committee
The HR and Remuneration Committee comprises 3 members, of whom 2 are non-executive directors.

Auditors

M/s Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants will retire at the conclusion of 30" Annual
General Meeting. They have expressed their willingness for reappointment. The Audit Committee has
recommended their reappointment.

Dividend

Considering the results for the year, the board is not recommending disbursement of any dividend for the
period ended June 30, 2018.

Acknowledgement

Finally, the directors would like to record their appreciation for the continued commitment and hard work
being carried out by the employees of the company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

LAHORE: JAVAID S. SIDDIQI PERVAIZ S. SIDDIQI
November 06, 2018 Chief Executive Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following
manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
a. Male: 6
b. Female: 1

2. The composition of board is as follows:

Category Names
Independent Director -
Executive Director Mr. Javaid S. Siddiqi
Non-Executive Director | Mr. Pervaiz S. Siddiqi Mrs. Fauzia Javaid

Mr. Salman Javaid Siddigi Mr. Asim Pervaiz Siddiqi
Mr. Adnan Javaid Siddigi  Mr. Arsalan Javaid Siddiqi

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than
five listed companies, including this company.

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate
steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its
supporting policies and procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been
maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters have been taken by board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the chairman and, in his absence,
by a director elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of the meeting of board.

8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for
remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. The board has arranged directors’ training program for the following:
Mr. Salman J. Siddigi - Director
10. The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of

Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment
and complied with relevant requirements of the regulations.

10
-
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11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

1. Mr. Salman J. Siddiqi - (Non-Executive Director) — Chairman
2. Mr. Pervaiz S. Siddiqi - (Non-Executive Director)
3. Mrs. Fauzia Javaid - (Non-Executive Director)

b) HR & Remuneration Committee

1. Mr. Pervaiz S. Siddiqi - (Non-Executive Director) — Chairman
2. Mr. Javaid S. Siddiqi - (Executive Director)
3. Mr. Asim Pervaiz Siddiqi - (Non-Executive Director)

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented
and advised to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/yearly) of the committee were as per
following :

a) Audit Committee - 7 meetings
b) HR & Remuneration Committee - 1 meeting

15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function which is considered suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and
procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and
registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of
the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and
that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed
to provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any
other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have
observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

LAHORE : JAVAID S. SIDDIQI PERVAIZ S. SIDDIQI
November 06, 2018 Chief Executive Officer Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT OF
ICC TEXTILES LIMITED ON STATEMENT OF
COMPLIANCE LISTED COMPANIES CONTAINED IN
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE)
REGULATIONS, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of ICC Textiles Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2018 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if
it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A
review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of vatious
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding
of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an
effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors'
statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the
effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's cotporate governance procedutes and
risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the
requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have
ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We
have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for
identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were
undertaken at arm's length price ot not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Further, we highlighted below instance of non—compliances with the requirements of the
Code as reflected in following paragraphs where these are stated in the Statement of
Compliance:

Paragraph:
Reference Description
6,28 and 29 The Board, audit committee and human resoutce and remuneration

committee (HR&R) of the Company do not have any independent director
as required by the Code.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner: Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb
Lahotre.

Dated: November 06, 2018



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ICC TEXTILES LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of ICC Textiles Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in
equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, (here-in-after referred to as “the financial statements”) and we state that we
have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming patt thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2017, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2018 and of the profit and other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs)
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (#he institute) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention towards note 1.2 to the financial
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statements which describes that as at June 30, 2018, the Company’s current liabilities

exceeded its current assets by Rs. 107.052 million and its accumulated losses stood at Rs.

741.671 million. These conditions indicate existence of a material uncertainty that may cast

significant doubt about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. These financial

statements have, however, been prepared on a going concern basis for the reasons, as more

fully explained in note 1.2 to the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters

were addressed in the context of out audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

Sr. Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our
No. audit
1 Preparation of financial statements under

the Companies Act, 2017

The Companies Act 2017 (the Act) became
applicable for the first time for the
preparation of the Company’s annual financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2018.

The Act forms an integral part of the
statutory financial reporting framewosk as
applicable to the Company and amongst
others, prescribes the nature and content of
disclosures in relation to various elements of
the financial statements.

Further, the Company has also changed its
accounting policy relating to presentation and
measurement of surplus on revaluation of
fixed assets as a consequence of the
application of the Act with retrospective
effect. The impact of the said change in
accounting policy has been disclosed in note
419 to the

statements.

accompanying  financial

The above changes and enhancements in the

financial statements are considered important

Our procedures included, but were not
limited to:

¢ Reviewed and understood the
requirements of the fourth schedule to the
Companies Act, 2017.

* Considered the management’s process
to identify the additional disclosures
required in the annexed financial

statements.

* Obtained relevant underlying supports
for the additional disclosures and assessed
their appropriateness for sufficient audit

evidence.

* Verified, on test basis, the supporting
evidence for the additional disclosures and
assessed appropriateness of the disclosures
made.

* In respect of the change in accounting

policy for the accounting and presentation




and a key audit matter because of the volume
and significance of the changes in the
financial statements resulting from the
transition to the new reporting requirements
under the Act.

of revaluation surplus as referred to note
419 to the accompanying financial
statements, we assessed the accounting
implications in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting standards
and evaluated its application in the context
of the Company.

Non-Current Assets Classified as Held for
Sale & Discontinuation of Textile
Operations:

The Company has classified its plant and
machinery as held for sale as disclosed in Note
27 to the financial statements. We have
focused on this area owing to the significance
of this transaction.

With respect to this transaction, we
performed the following audit procedures:
* Discussed with the management their
active plan to dispose off the assets
pertaining to this segment;

* Obtained and reviewed the Board of
Directors minutes to confirm approval of
disposal of assets relevant to the textile
division;

* Assessed independence, scope of work
and findings of management’s third party
valuation expert engaged for ascertaining
the fair value of the assets being disposed
off;

* Evaluated the presentation and
disclosures of Non-Current  Assets
Classified as Held for Sale and loss from
discontinuing operations in the financial
statements as required by the applicable
reporting framework.

Investment Properties

The Company owns frechold land and
building at 32-Km Multan Road, Sundar,
Lahore. As at June 30, 2018, the fair value of
investment properties was Rs. 844.019
Million, representing 90% of the Company’s
total assets as at that date.

The fair values of the Company’s investment
properties were assessed by management
based on independent valuations prepared by
external property valuers.

We identified valuation of investment

properties as a key audit matter because the

Our audit procedures to assess the

valuation of investment properties
included the following:

* evaluating the qualifications, experience
and competence of the external valuer
engaged by management and holding
discussions with the external valuer,
without the presence of management, to
understand their valuation methods and
the assumptions applied;

* cvaluating the valuation methodology
used by the external valuer by comparison
with the valuation methodologies applied
by other valuers for similar property types;

* assessing the key assumptions adopted

15
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determination of the fair values involves
significant judgement and estimation,
particularly in selecting the appropriate
valuation methodology and in determining the
underlying assumptions, which increase the
risk of error or potential management bias,
and because the valuations are sensitive to the
key assumptions applied.

in the valuations, including those relating
to sales prices per square feet and the
discount rates applied to determine forced
sale wvalue, by comparing them with
historical rates and available industry data
and considering the possibility of error or
management bias in the selection of

assumptions adopted; and

* assessing fair value gain recorded during
the year.

Valuation of Gratuity

The Company’s obligation in respect of
defined benefit plans as at June 30, 2018
amounted to Rs. 40.730 million.

In determining the obligation in respect of
defined benefit plans, the Company engaged
an actuarial expert to perform the actuarial
valuation of the defined benefit obligation,
which involves use of key assumptions
including discount rates, expected rate of
increase in future salaries and mortality rates.
Changes in any of these key assumptions can
have a material impact on the calculation of
these liabilities.

We identified retirement benefit obligation as
a key audit matter because of significant
management judgment relating to valuation
assumptions that are inherently complex and

require specialist actuarial input.

Our audit procedures amongst others,
comprised understanding the management
valuation  process,  including  the
involvement of actuarial expert in
performing the actuarial valuation of plan
assets and defined benefit obligation:

* We assessed the competence and
objectivity of the qualified actuary engaged
by the Company to value the defined
benefit obligation under IAS 19
‘Employee Benefits’;

* we assessed the appropriateness of the
methodology and assumptions used to
determine the obligation in respect of
defined benefit plans by comparison with
the valuation methodologies applied by
other actuaries;

* We tested data provided by the
Company to actuary for the purpose of
valuation;

* We also reviewed the adequacy of the
related disclosures in the financial
statements; and

* We verified payments made during the

year.




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information
comprises the information included in the annual report for the year ended June 30, 2018,
but does not include the financial statements and our auditot's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as
management determines is necessaty to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting

process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and ate considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s

internal control.

e LDvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies wused and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by

management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s reportt.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e LDvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships



and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the boatd of directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:
a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017;

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income or the income and expenditure account, the statement
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes
thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 and

are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the
year were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980
(XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants
Lahore

Date: November 06, 2018
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Note 2018 2017 2016
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Restated Restated
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorized share capital
32,000,000 ( 2017: 32,000,000 ) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each 320,000,000 320,000,000 320,000,000
Share capital
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 5 300,011,200 300,011,200 300,011,200
Capital reserves
Revaluation surplus 6 574,923,456 603,715,735 523,687,940
Revenue reserves
Accumulated losses (741,670,613) (787,599,476) (816,970,385)
Total equity 133,264,043 116,127,459 6,728,755
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing from directors 7 551,524,401 501,588,618 270,570,409
Long term financing from commercial banks 8 - - -
Deferred liabilities 9 85,887,967 112,787,495 142,772,428
637,412,368 614,376,113 413,342,837
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 10 91,949,559 104,691,740 161,006,389
Security deposits 11 5,546,163 7,853,730 -
Accrued interest / mark-up 12 29,833,050 25,923,989 30,453,900
Short-term borrowings 13 35,810,966 4,331,979 124,319,088
Current portion of long term financing 14 - 65,288,898 190,834,087
Unclaimed dividend 1,662,656 1,662,656 1,662,656
164,802,394 209,752,992 508,276,120
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 935,478,805 940,256,564 928,347,712
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 15

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement under section 232 of the Companies Act, 2017
The Chief Executive is currently out of country. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the company has authorised two
Directors and Chief Financial Officer to sign these financial statements.




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2018

ICC Textiles Limited

ASSETS Note 2018 2017 2016
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Restated Restated
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 16 13,453,832 242,182,764 675,842,075
Investment properties 17 844,019,885 620,349,770 -
Long term loans and advances 18 58,000 209,000 29,000
Long term deposits 19 1,629,034 1,629,034 1,629,034
859,160,751 864,370,568 677,500,109
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 20 15,880,663 15,801,172 25,123,900
Stock in trade 21 734,477 1,035,767 14,551,946
Trade debts 22 - 127,448 9,576,623
Loans and advances 23 734,665 429,907 3,603,334
Short term prepayments and other receivables 24 1,392,421 1,345,669 1,659,834
Tax refunds due from Government 25 37,645,656 40,000,826 38,288,792
Cash and bank balances 26 1,362,310 455,207 11,442,103
57,750,192 59,195,996 104,246,532
Non-current assets classified as held for sale 27 18,567,862 16,690,000 146,601,071
TOTAL ASSETS 935,478,805 940,256,564 928,347,712
Sd- Sd- Sd-
Director Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note
Rupees Rupees
Restated
REVENUE 28 15,363,305 9,909,550
DIRECT COST 29 (12,157,314) -
GROSS PROFIT 3,205,991 9,909,550
OPERATING EXPENSES:
DISTRIBUTION COST 30 (369,201) -
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 31 (25,816,437) (594,573)
OTHER EXPENSES 32 (866,908) -
(27,052,546) (594,573)
(23,846,555) 9,314,977
OTHER INCOME 33 3,052 -
OPERATING (LOSS) / PROFIT (23,843,503) 9,314,977
FINANCE COST 34 (49,638,352) (21,152,053)
CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 90,251,125 100,452,810
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 16,769,270 88,615,734
TAXATION FOR THE YEAR 35 (2,947,826) (2,273,251)
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION FOR
THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 13,821,444 86,342,483
PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAXATION FOR
THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 36 2,212,151 (81,603,975)
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION FOR THE YEAR 16,033,595 4,738,508
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - 11 -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Actuarial loss or gains on employee benefit obligations (net of tax) 2,464,196 3,151,734
Revaluation surplus arisen on property, plant and equipment
(net of tax) 8,704,028 102,191,534
Revaluation decrease in non-current assets classified as held
for sale (net of tax) (11,592,411) (2,939,400)
Effect of change in tax rates 1,527,176 2,256,328
1,102,989 104,660,196
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,102,989 104,660,196
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 17,136,584 109,398,704
EARNING/(LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 0.46 288
- FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS
- FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 0.07 (2.72)
- TOTAL 37 0.53 0.16

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement under section 232 of the Companies Act, 2017

The Chief Executive is currently out of country. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the company has authorised two

Directors and Chief Financial Officer to sign these financial statements.

Sd- Sd-
Director Director

22
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Chief Financial Officer



STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash (used in) / generated from operations:
Cash used in continuing operations
Cash used in discontinued operations

Finance cost paid
Income tax paid
Gratuity paid

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Received / (amount distributed) pertaining to long term loans and
advances
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment & non-current
assets classified as held for sale

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and investment properties
Net cash generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from / (Repayment of) short term borrowings - net
Proceeds from long term financing obtained from directors

Repayment of long term financing obtained from commercial banks-net
Net cash used in financing activities
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement under section 232 of the Companies Act, 2017

ICC Textiles Limited

2018 2017
Note
Rupees Rupees
41 (18,328,417) 24,876,811
a4 {11,639,715) (63,781,252)
(29,968,132) (38,904,441)
(27,784,609) (28,044,589)
(2,520,597) (4,677,977)
(6,596,687) (33,738,714)
(36,901,893) (66,461,280)
(66,870,025) (105,365,721)
151,000 (180,000)
74,359,268 125,736,226
(4,600) (1,264,678)
74,505,668 124,291,548
31,478,987 (119,987,109)
32,008,302 214,968,251
(70,215,829)(| (124,893,865)
(6,728,540) (29,912,723)
907,103 (10,986,896)
455,207 11,442,103
26 1,362,310 455,207

The Chief Executive is currently out of country. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the company has authorised two

Directors and Chief Financial Officer to sign these financial statements.

Sd-
Director

Sd-
Director

Sd-

Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

24

Capital Revenue
Reserves - Reserves - Total
Paid-up Revaluation | Accumulated Shareholders'
Description Capital Surplus Losses Equity
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Balance at July 01, 2016 - as previously reported 300,011,200 - (816,970,385) (516,959,185)
Effect of retrospective change in accounting policy-note 4.19 - 523,687,940 - 523,687,940
Balance at July 01, 2016 - restated 300,011,200 523,687,940 (816,970,385) 6,728,755
Other comprehensive income for the year - restated - 101,508,462 3,151,734 104,660,196
Profit for the year - - 4,738,508 4,738,508
Total comprehensive income for the year- restated - 101,508,462 7,890,242 109,398,704
Transfer to accumulated losses on account of incremental
depreciation (net of tax) - (21,480,667) 21,480,667 -
Balance at June 30, 2017 - restated 300,011,200 603,715,735 (787,599,476) 116,127,459
Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year - (1,361,207) 2,464,196 1,102,989
Profit for the year - - 16,033,595 16,033,595
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year - (1,361,207) 18,497,791 17,136,584
Transfer to accumulated losses on account of incremental
depreciation (net of tax) - (27,431,072) 27,431,072 -
Balance at June 30, 2018 300,011,200 574,923,456 (741,670,613) 133,264,043

The annexed notes 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement under section 232 of the Companies Act, 2017
The Chief Executive is currently out of country. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the company has authorised two
Directors and Chief Financial Officer to sign these financial statements.

Sd-
Director

Sd-
Director

Sd-
Chief Financial Officer




ICC Textiles Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 ICC Textiles Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on May 25, 1989 as a public
limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Repealed with the enactment of
the Companies Act, 2017 on May 30, 2017). The shares of the Company are listed on Pakistan
Stock Exchange. The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and sale of greige fabric
and renting out vacant buildings and / or open area of the company's premises. The registered
office of the Company is situated at 242-A, Anand Road, Upper Mall, Lahore and the Company's
plant is located at 32-Km Multan Road, Sundar, Lahore.

1.2 The Company has accumulated losses amounting to Rs. 741.671 million at the year end. While,
the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 107.052 million at the year end.
These conditions indicate existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about
the Company's ability to continue as going concern and therefore, may be unable to realize its
assets and discharge its liabilities in normal course of business. Continuation of the Company as a
going concern is dependent on its ability to attain satisfactory levels of profitability and liquidity in
the future by bringing its liabilities to serviceable levels and availability of adequate working capital
through continued support from:

(a) the principal lenders of the Company; and

(b) the sponsors of the Company.
These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis on the grounds that the
Company will be able to achieve satisfactory levels of profitability and liquidity in the future based
on the plans drawn up by the management for this purpose, bringing its liabilities to serviceable
levels and availability of the adequate working capital from its lenders and sponsors.

To substantiate its going concern assumption:

i In order to consolidate the Company's resources, due to uncertainty in securing industrial gas
connection, which is essential for cheaper and continuous gas based electricity, the Company
had disposed off all its looms:

- 63 (including 23 sold during last year) inefficient sulzer looms; and

- 78 (including 74 sold during last year) old energy intensive air-jet looms, with allied
equipment, accessories and parts, which were no more financially viable and were causing
continuous losses.

Similarly, the Company has rented out its partial factory buildings and labour colony to
generate cashflows;

ii Bank borrowings have been fully repaid by April 2018 by making final payment of Rs. 70.216
million during the year;

iii During the year 2015, the Company had also repaid long term loan amounting to Rs. 14.896
million and had reduced the running finance facilities from Rs. 480 million to Rs. 330 million, as
37 sulzer looms were disposed off and one director of the Company sold his property to MCB
Bank Limited under buy-back arrangement, and advanced such proceeds amounting to Rs.
140 million as long term loan to the Company for partial settlement of the finance facilities. The
loan is payable in lump sum by June 30, 2025;

iv Some directors of the Company have also extended long term interest bearing loans
amounting to Rs. 32.008 million (2017: Rs. 214.254 million) during the year to meet working
capital requirements of the Company and settlement of banks' finance facilities. The sponsors
of the Company would continue such support in future;

v Few directors of the Company had also invested through long term interest free loans
amounting to Rs. 321.531 million during May 2013 to June 2016 to meet working capital
requirements of the Company; 25



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

vi During 2013, the Board of Directors of ICC (Private) Limited, an associated undertaking, had
decided to write off following outstanding loans advanced to the Company:

- Long term interest free loans amounting to Rs. 189.150 million with carrying value, in ICC
Textiles Limited books, amounting to Rs. 48.801 million; and
- Short term interest bearing loans amounting to Rs. 30.850 million.

vii During April 2011, the Company had also increased its paid-up capital by Rs. 200.003 million
by converting loans obtained from associated company, directors and their family members by
issuing further 20,000,320 ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each at par.

The financial statements consequently do not include any adjustment relating to the realization of

the assets and liquidation of its liabilities that might be necessary would the Company be unable to

continue as a going concern.

2 SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY’S FINANCIAL
POSITION AND PERFORMANCE

2.1 For a detailed discussion about these significant transactions and events, please refer to the
Directors’ report.

2.2 The Company’s financial position and performance was particularly affected by the following
events and transactions during the reporting period:
- The Company has obtained loan from directors' amounting to Rs. 32.008 million.
- The Company has transferred free hold land and building to investment property amounting
to Rs. 133.419 million;
- The Company has disposed off assets from property, plant and equipment and non-current
assets classified as held for sale having WDV of Rs. 76.316 million;
- Loan obtained from director amounting to Rs. 140 million has been rescheduled, as its
repayment date has been extended to June 30, 2025 and rate of mark-up has also been
changed; and
- The Company has adopted Companies Act, 2017 and accordingly, certain new disclosures
have been incorporated in these financial statements.

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1 Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards
as applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of International Financial
Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Act, 2017. In case requirements differ, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies
Act, 2017 shall prevail.

3.2 Standards, amendments or interpretations that became effective during the year
The fourth schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 became applicable to the Company for the first
time for the preparation of these financial statements. The Companies Act, 2017 (including its
fourth schedule) forms an integral part of the statutory financial reporting framework applicable to
the Company and amongst others, prescribes the nature and content of disclosures in relation to
various elements of the financial statements. The Company has also adopted following new
standards and amendments to published standards during the year:

Standard or Interpretation

IAS-7 Statement of Cash Flows
IAS-12 Income Taxes

Adoption of the above standards and amendments have no significant effect on these financial
26 statements.



ICC Textiles Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

3.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the approved accounting standards that are
relevant but not yet effective and not early adopted by the Company
The following standards, amendments or interpretations with respect to the approved accounting
standards and interpretations as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates
mentioned below against the respective standards:

Standard or interpretation IASB effective date
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1-Jul-18
IFRS 15 Revenue from Customers 1-Jul-18
IFRS 16 Leases 1-Jul-19
IFRS 2 Share-based Payment — Classification and 1-Jan-18
Measurement of Share based Payment Transactions

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts — Applying IFRS 9 Financial 1-Jan-18
Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

IAS 40 Investment Property — Transfers of Investment 1-Jan-18
Property

IFRS 1 Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 1-Jan-18
2014-2016 Cycle

IFRS 11 Joint Agreements - Accounting for Acquisition of 1-Jan-18
Interests in Joint Operations (Amendments)

IAS 28 Presentation of Financial Statements - Annual 1-Jan-18
Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipments and IAS 38 1-Jul-16

Intangible Assets - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments)

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance 1-Jan-18
Consideration

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatment 1-Jan-19
IFRS 1 and IAS 28 - Annual Improvements to IFRSs 1-Jan-18
2014-2016

The Company is in process of assessing impact of these amendments to the published standards,
interpretations and Companies Act 2017 on the financial statements of the Company.

3.4 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet
notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

In addition to the above, following standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified
by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan ;

Standard or Interpretation

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
3.5 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for:

- staff retirement benefits which are measured at present value of defined benefit obligations (refer
note 4.1);

- free hold land, buildings and plant and machinery which are measured at revalued amounts (refer
note 4.2);

- financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value (refer note 4.8); and
- non current assets classified as held for sale which are measured at fair value (refer note 4.17).

27
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

3.6 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its
judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments
are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectation of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various
assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where
judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are discussed below:

Income taxes

In making the estimates for income taxes currently payable by the Company, the management
looks at the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Trade debts and other receivables

Impairment loss against doubtful trade and other debts is made on a judgment basis, which
provisions may differ in the future years based on the actual experience. The difference in
provision if any, is recognized in the future period.

Property, plant and equipment

The Company's management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation
charge for its property, plant and equipment. The estimates for revalued amounts of different
classes of property, plant and equipment are based on valuation performed by external
professional valuers and recommendations of technical teams of the Company. The said
recommendation also includes estimates with respect to residual values and depreciable lives.
Further, the Company reviews its assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in
use of assets in future years might the affect carrying amounts of the respective item of property,
plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Investment property and assets classified as held for sale

Valuation is performed by external professional valuers. Further, the Company reviews its assets
for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change use of assets in future years might affect
carrying amounts of the respective item with a corresponding effect on the impairment.

Stock in trade and stores, spare parts and loose tools

The Company's management reviews the net realizable value (NRV) and impairment of stock in
trade and stores, spare parts and loose tools to assess any diminution in the respecting carrying
values and wherever required provision for NRV / impairment is made. The difference in provision,
if any, is recognized in statement of profit or loss for the year.

Staff retirement benefits

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in Note 4.1 to the financial
statements for the valuation of present value of defined benefit obligation. Any changes in these
assumptions might affect unrecognized gains and losses in those years.

Provision for contingencies

The Company's management uses assumptions and estimates in disclosures and assessment of
provision for contingencies.

3.7 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.
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ICC Textiles Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
4.1 Staff retirement benefits

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme ( defined benefit plan ) covering all eligible
directors and employees, payable at the cessation of employment. The liability is provided on the
basis of actuarial valuation applying Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Actuarial Method. The Company
has a policy of carrying out actuarial valuation on annual basis with the assistance of independent
actuarial appraisers to cover the obligations under the scheme.

Principal actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30 are as follows:

- Discount rate used for year end obligation 9.00% (2017: 7.75%) per annum

- Expected rate of salary increase in future 8.00% (2017:6.75%) per annum

- Average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 3 years (2017: 4 years)

- Mortality rate assumed were based on the SLIC 2001-2005 mortality table ( 2017:SLIC 2001-
2005 mortality table)

4.2 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at acquisition cost, including any costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by the Company's management.

Furniture and fittings, vehicles, electrical appliances and office equipment

Subsequently, furniture and fittings, vehicles, electrical appliances and office equipment are
measured using cost model i.e. cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss on diminishing balance method
at the rates as disclosed in Note 16 so as to write off the depreciable amount of furniture and
fittings, vehicles, electrical appliances and office equipment over their estimated useful lives.

Freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and machinery

Free hold land is subsequently measured using revaluation model at the revalued amounts.

Buildings and plant and machinery are subsequently measured using revaluation model at revalued
amount less subsequent accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Any surplus on
revaluation of freehold land, building on freehold land, and plant and machinery is credited to the
surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment account. Revaluation is carried with
sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the
fair value. To the extent of incremental depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the related
surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (net of deferred tax) is transferred directly
to accumulated loss.

Depreciation on buildings and plant and machinery is charged to statement of profit or loss on
straight line method at the rates as disclosed in note 16 so as to write off the depreciable amount of
these assets over their estimated useful lives.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment except freehold land is charged from
the date of acquisition / capitalization / start of commercial production of the assets and
depreciation on assets disposed off during the year is charged up to the date of disposal.
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Gain / loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is reflected in statement of profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to
income as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are capitalized.

The asset's residual values and estimated useful lives are reviewed as required, but at least
annually and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

4.3 Investment properties

Properties which are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both are classified as
investment properties. Investment properties are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of
the consideration given. Subsequently these are stated at fair value. The fair value is determined
annually by an independent professional valuer based on market values, being the estimated
amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation between knowledgeable
willing parties in an arm length transaction. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is
charged to the statement of profit or loss.

When an item of property, plant and equipment is transferred to investment property, following a
change in its use, any difference arising at the date of transfer between the carrying amount of the
item and its fair value is recognized in revaluation surplus of property, plant and equipment. Upon
disposal, the related revaluation surplus is transferred to accumulated loss. Any gain or loss arising
in this manner is credited to statement of profit or loss.

When an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and
equipment and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting
purposes for subsequent recording.

4.4 Finance leases

Assets subject to finance lease, in which the Company bears substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets, are recognized at the inception of lease at the lower of present value of
the minimum lease payments under the lease agreements and the fair value of the assets.

The related obligations of leases, net of finance cost, are included in liabilities against assets
subject to finance lease.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant
rate of financial cost on the balance outstanding. The interest element of the rental is charged to
statement of profit or loss over the lease term.

Assets acquired under a finance lease are depreciated over the useful life of the assets on
reducing balance method. Depreciation of the leased assets is charged to statement of profit or loss.

Depreciation on additions to leased assets is charged from the date of acquisition of the assets and
depreciation on assets disposed off during the year is charged up to the date of disposal.
4.5 Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated upto the date of statement of financial
position less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is recognized as
operating fixed asset when it is made available for intended use.

4.6 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are stated at lower of cost & net realizable value using moving average method except
goods in transit which are stated at lower of cost.
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4.7 Stock in trade

Stock in trade is stated principally at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost of major components of stock in trade is determined as follows:

Raw materials - At annual average cost

Work in process and finished goods - At prime cost plus appropriate production
overheads using weighted average

Net realizable value means the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less costs
necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.

4.8 Financial instruments
4.8.1 Financial assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets are described below. Financial assets are
derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when
the financial asset and all substantial risks and rewards are transferred.

Financial assets of the Company are classified as follows:
4.8.1.1 Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial recognition, these are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where the
effect of discounting is immaterial. These are included in current assets, except for maturities for
greater than twelve months after the date of statement of financial position, which are classified as
non-current assets. The Company's cash and cash equivalents, trade debts, loans and advances,
deposits and other receivables fall into this category of financial instruments. Loans and
receivables are subject to review for impairment at each reporting date to identify whether there is
obiective evidence that the financial asset is impaired.

4.8.1.2 Available-for-sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or
not classified in any of the categories of loans and receivables, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and financial assets held to maturity.

After initial recognition, available- for-sale investments are measured at fair value. Gains or losses
on available-for-sale investments are recognized in other comprehensive income until the
investment is sold or de-recognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported is
included in statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership.

The Company assesses at each date of statement of financial position whether there is objective
evidence, that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists
for 'available-for-sale' financial assets, the cumulative loss is removed from equity and recognized
in statement of profit or loss.
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4.8.2 Financial liabilities
The Company's financial liabilities include borrowings and trade and other payables.

All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value, less attributable transaction costs. Financial
liabilities are measured subsequently at amortized cost using the effective interest method, in
accordance with International Accounting Standard 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another on substantially different
terms, or terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange and modification
is treated as a derecognition of original liability and the recognition of new liability, and the
difference in respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, if any, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings, if any, pending their expenditure on qualifying asset is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized as expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

A financial asset and financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if the Company has a legal enforceable right to set off the transaction and also
intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Pak Rupee are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each date of statement of financial position, monetary assets
and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date of statement of financial position.

Gains and losses arising on retranslation are included in profit or loss for the period.
Revenue recoghnition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents

amounts receivable for goods and services provided in the normal course of business. Major type

of revenue is recognized on the following basis:

- Export sales are recorded at the time of shipment. Exchange differences, if any, are adjusted in
the period of realization.

- Local sales are recorded on dispatch of goods to the customers.

- Export rebates are accounted for on accrual basis.

- Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis.

- Rental income is recognised on accrual basis.

Taxation
Current
The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after

taking into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemption available, if any, and tax paid on
presumptive basis.
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Deferred
Deferred tax is provided using the statement of financial position liability method for all temporary

differences at the date of statement of financial position between tax basis of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward
of unused tax losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which such temporary differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all major taxable temporary differences.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the date of statement of financial position. Deferred tax is
charged or credited to the statement of profit or loss, except in the case of items credited or charged
to equity in which case it is included in equity.

4.12 Impairment of assets
The Company assesses at each date of statement of financial position whether there is any
indication that assets excluding inventory may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying
amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of their
recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed recoverable amounts, assets are written down
to their recoverable amounts and the difference is charged to the statement of profit or loss.

413 Provisions
A provision is recognized in the financial statements when the Company has legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made to
the amount of obligation.

4.14 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and
bank balances and other short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

415 Contingent liability

Contingent liability is disclosed when:

-There is possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company; or

-There is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of
the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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416 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the Board of Directors that makes strategic decisions. The management has determined that the
Company has two reportable segments as the Board of Directors views the Company’s operations
as two reportable segments.

4.17 Non current assets held for sale

Non-current assets classified as assets held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell if their carrying amount is recoverable principally through a sale
transaction rather than through a continuing use.

4.18 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are measured at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received. These are recognized at
amortized cost.

4.19 Change in accounting policy
The Companies Act, 2017 has introduced changes to the accounting standards, which have been
applied for the first time in these financial statements. The changes in the accounting standards
have impacted the Company's accounting policy relating to the revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment. Accordingly, the accounting policy of the revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment has been changed and applied retrospectively in these financial statements.
The resulted impact of change in accounting policy is further explained below:

30-Jun-18 30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16

Rupees Rupees Rupees
Statement of financial position

Surplus on revaluation below

equity - as previously reported 573,396,280 603,715,735 523,687,940
Surplus on revaluation below

equity - restated - - -
Surplus on revaluation in equity -

as previously reported - - -

Surplus on revaluation in equity -

573,396,280 603,715,735 523,687,940
restated
Statement of comprehensive income
30-Jun-18 30-Jun-17
Rupees Rupees

(Loss)/Gain on revaluation of
property, plant & equipment- net of
deferred tax (as previously
reported)

(Loss)/Gain on revaluation of
property, plant & equipment - net of (2,888,383) 99,252,134
deferred tax (restated)
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Note 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
5 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL
30,001,120 (2017 : 30,001,120) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid in cash 300,011,200 300,011,200
6 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET OF TAX
Surplus arising on revaluation 6.1 620,738,736 668,375,265
Less: Deferred tax arising on surplus on revaluation 6.2 45,815,280 64,659,530
574,923,456 603,715,735
6.1 Opening balance of surplus on revaluation 668,375,265 593,682,912
Add: Surplus arising during the year - net 6.1.1 8,919,244 110,701,498
Less: Incremental depreciation:
Buildings 1,199,100 4,285,782
Plant & machinery 4,652,608 12,039,397
5,851,708 16,325,179
Less: Revaluation relating to plant & machinery disposed off 33,903,469 15,423,966
Less: Revaluation decrease in non-current assets classified as held
for sale 27 16,800,596 4,260,000
620,738,736 668,375,265

6.1.1 The revaluation of free - hold land and buildings on free - hold land was carried out by Arch-e-decon (Evaluators,
Surveyors, Architects and Engineers) as at Dec 31, 2017. The revaluations resulted in followings:
Rupees
Increase in carrying value of free - hold land 8,225,000
Increase in carrying value of buildings on free - hold land 694,244
8,919,244

6.1.2

equipment and equivalent depreciation based on historical cost of property, plant and equipment.

Incremental depreciation represents the difference between actual depreciation on revalued property, plant and

6.2 Related deferred tax liability on July 01 64,659,530 69,994,972
Deferred tax liability arising on revaluation 215,216 8,509,964

Tax effect on incremental depreciation & disposal of machinery during the year (12,324,105) (10,268,478)

Tax effect on revaluation decrease in non-current assets classified as held for sale (5,208,185) (1,320,600)

Effect of change in tax rate (1,527,176) (2,256,328)
45,815,280 64,659,530

Deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 226.262 million (2017: Rs. 201.101 million) arising on account of temporary
differences mainly for property, plant and equipment, gratuity, unused tax losses and unused tax credits has not been

accounted for due to uncertainty regarding its recoverability in the foreseeable future.
7 LONG TERM FINANCING FROM DIRECTORS - Unsecured

Interest free loans 71 165,262,134 150,357,690
Interest bearing loan - 1 7.2 - 136,976,963
Interest bearing loan - 2 7.3 166,262,267 114,253,965
Interest bearing loan - 3 7.4 80,000,000 100,000,000
Interest bearing loan - 4 7.25 140,000,000 -
551,524,401 501,588,618
71 Original Loan amounts 711 321,531,223 321,531,223
Less: Present Value Adjustment 71.2 206,132,600 206,132,600
115,398,623 115,398,623
Add: Interest charged to statement of profit and loss ( Unwinding of discount ) 49,863,511 34,959,067
165,262,134 150,357,690

711
71.2

These interest free loans are repayable in lump sum on June 30, 2025 (2017: June 30, 2025).

These long term interest free loans have been measured at amortized cost by applying weighted average interest rate
ranging from 8.06% to 11.64% (2017: 8.06% to 11.64%).
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2018 2017
Note | | Rupees | | Rupees
7.2 Original Loan amounts 721&7.23 140,000,000 140,000,000
Less: Present Value Adjustment 7.2.4 9,653,031 9,653,031
130,346,969 130,346,969
Add: Interest charged to statement of profit or loss ( Unwinding of discount ) 9,653,031 6,629,994
7.23 140,000,000 136,976,963
Less: Amount transferred to interest bearing loans 7.2.5 140,000,000 -
- 136,976,963
7.21 A director of the company had sold, on June 11, 2015, his property amounting to Rs. 140 million to MCB Bank Limited,
with a buy back option on the same price along with cost of fund, within a period of three years thereof in accordance
with Finance Facilities Settlement Agreement dated May 28, 2015. The sale proceeds had been advanced to the
company as long term loan and had been utilized for settlement of finance facilities extended by MCB Bank. The cost of
fund would be paid by the Company to MCB Bank on exercise of buy-back option by the director.
7.2.2 The loan was repayable in lump sum initially by May 28, 2018 which was extended to Dec 2018.
7.2.3 The mark-up, payable to MCB Bank, was charged equal to cost of funds of MCB Bank for the relevant period uptil May
28,2018 i.e. 4.15% (2017: 5.39% - 6.21%).
7.2.4 The long term loan has been measured at amortized cost by using weighted average interest rate i.e. 8.06% less cost
of fund of the Bank i.e. 5.65% (2017: 5.65%).
7.2.5 During the year , term of such loan has been extended further uptil June 30, 2025. It also carries mark-up @ one month
KIBOR plus 2% w.e.f May 28, 2018 (2017: Cost of fund of MCB i.e. @ 5.39% - 6.21%).
7.3 These loans carry mark-up @ one month KIBOR plus 2% ( ranging from 8.26% to 8.92%) and are repayable in lump
sum on December 31, 2020.
7.4 This loan carries mark-up @ one month KIBOR plus 2% ( ranging from 8.26% to 8.92%) and is repayable in lump

sum on June 30, 2025.

8 LONG TERM FINANCING FROM COMMERCIAL BANKS - Secured
MCB Bank Limited 8.1 - -
Faysal Bank Limited 8.2 - -
8.1 MCB Bank Limited
Running finance facility - 339,967,656
Demand Finance - 1 - 14,896,104
Cost of Documents - Import Letter of Credit - 955,664
- 355,819,424
Less: Repayments up to June 30 - (355,819,424)
Balance as on June 30 - -
Less: Present Value Adjustment - 27,641,477
- (27,641,477)
Add: Interest charged to statement of profit or loss ( Unwinding of discount ) - 27,641,477
Less: Deferred transaction cost (cost of professional services for
settlement of finance facilities)
Deferred transaction cost - (2,500,000)
Less: Amortization - 2,500,000

Current portion :

Not yet due -
Overdue -
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8.1.1 The loan was obtained from MCB Bank Limited. In accordance with Finance Facilities Settlement Agreement dated May
28, 2015, last instalment of demand finance facility and cost of documents payable under import letter of credit, and
running finance facility outstanding as on June 30, 2015 was repayable within three years from the date of the
settlement agreement.

8.1.2 The facility was secured against joint pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of current assets and second joint pari
passu charge on property, plant and equipment of the Company. No mark-up was to be charged by the bank, provided
the entire principal liability had been repaid by May 28, 2018. Tentative repayment schedule was as under:

Rupees
September 2015 20,200,000
December 2015 56,000,000
June 2016 62,000,000
December 2016 61,819,424
200,019,424

Under this restructuring arrangement, out of total unpaid mark-up amounting to Rs. 48.705 million as on March 31,
2015, agreed payable was fixed at Rs. 10 million while balance was relinquished by MCB Bank Limited subject to the
condition that entire principal liability referred above would be paid by Dec 31, 2016. The Company had repaid such
entire liability before Dec 2016, and same has been recognized as income in the financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2016.

8.1.3 The loan was measured at amortized cost by using weighted average interest rate 8.06% (2017: 8.06%).

Note 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
8.2 Faysal Bank Limited
Running finance Facility 8.2.1 29,976,829 29,976,829
Short term advances 56,239,000 56,239,000
86,215,829 86,215,829
Less: Repayments (86,215,829) (16,000,000)
- 70,215,829
Less: Present value Adjustment 8,604,541 8,604,541
Add: Interest charged to statement of profit and loss 8,604,541 3,677,610
- 65,288,898
Less: Current portion - (65,288,898)

8.2.1 The loan has been obtained from Faysal Bank Limited. In accordance with Finance Facilities Settlement Agreement
dated Dec 15, 2016, short term financing outstanding as on Dec 15, 2016 was repayable by May 28, 2018.

The facilities were secured against joint pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of stock in trade & current assets,
second joint pari passu charge on property, plant and equipment of the Company & security of an associated company
and subordination of directors interest free loans to the extent of Rs.162.712 million. Mark-up for the period from April
01, 2015 to Dec 15, 2016 amounting to Rs. 21.884 million was waived off / (relinquished) and onward no mark-up was
to be charged by the Bank, provided the entire principal liability would have been repaid by May 28, 2018. Repayment
schedule is as under:

Rupees
June 30, 2017 16,000,000
May 28, 2018 70,215,829
86,215,829

Such waiver (relinquishment) by the Bank was recognized as other income in the financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2017.

8.2.2 Under this restructuring arrangement, balance mark-up payable amounting to Rs. 4.910 million pertaining to the period
up to March 31, 2015, was to be paid in equal quarterly instalments within a period of 18 months, after full payment of
principal liability within agreed period of two and a half years.

8.2.3 The loan has been measured at amortized cost by using weighted average interest rate of 8.26%. (2017: 8.26%).

8.2.4 During the year, the Company has repaid the entire liability of the Bank ahead of schedule i.e. on April 12, 2018 and the
Bank has waived off the deferred mark-up amounting to Rs. 4.910 million, which has been accounted for as other
income in these financial statements (refer to Note 36.6).
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9 DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred tax
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity
Deferred mark-up

Note 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
6.2 45,815,280 64,659,530
9.2 40,072,687 43,218,235
8.22&8.24 - 4,909,730
85,887,967 112,787,495

9.1 The scheme provides for gratuity benefits for all permanent employees who attain minimum qualifying period of one
year. Provision has been made on the basis of latest actuarial valuation made on June 30, 2018 by applying projected

unit credit method.
9.2 Changes in Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations:

Opening liability 43,218,235 72,777,456
Charge for the year 9.3 5,915,335 7,331,227
Remeasurement gain recognised in other comprehensive
income (experience adjustment) (2,464,196) (3,151,734)
Benefits paid during the year (6,596,687) (33,738,714)
Closing liability 40,072,687 43,218,235
9.3 Charge for the year in statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 2,821,543 3,277,890
Interest cost 3,093,792 4,053,337
5,915,335 7,331,227
9.4 The present value of defined benefit obligation is as follows:
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Present value of defined benefit
obligation as at June 30 40,072,687 43,218,235 72,777,456 69,013,586 61,887,298
9.5 Charge for the year has been allocated as under: 2018 2017
Note
Rupees Rupees
Direct Cost 29.1 1,069,560 1,586,057
Distribution Cost 301 82,366 262,764
Administrative expenses 311 4,763,409 5,482,406
5,915,335 7,331,227

9.6 Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other

assumptions constant, would have resulted in present value of defined benefit obligation as stated below:

Discount rate + 1%
Discount rate - 1%
Salary increase + 1%
Salary increase - 1%

10 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors

Due to associated company
Accrued liabilities

Payable to employees
Advances from customers
Income tax deducted at source
Sales tax deducted at source
Final dues payable

Others

11 SECURITY DEPOSITS

31,479,716 41,779,908
32,506,580 44,834,756
32,516,238 44,868,301
31,462,035 41,723,477
10,732,180 13,837,337
188,227 210,867
16,073,404 8,925,688
- 24,797
5,796,726 21,334,511
8,064,999 8,288,291
1,253,438 23,141
22,335,692 24,557,655
27,504,893 27,489,453
91,949,559 104,691,740

These amounts have been received as security deposits from tenants which have not been kept in a separate bank account
due to the fact that these are utilizable as working capital of the company in accordance with written agreements executed with
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Note 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
12 ACCRUED MARKUP
Accrued mark-up / interest on long term financing from directors 29,228,005 25,923,989
Accrued mark-up / interest on short term borrowings 605,045 -
29,833,050 25,923,989
13 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Banking companies - unsecured
Commercial bank- current account (bank overdraft) 13.1 26,763 817,776
Related parties - unsecured
Associated company- unsecured 13.2 35,784,203 3,514,203

35,810,966 4,331,979

13.1 The unfavourable balance has arisen due to cheques issued prior to the year end. However, concerned bank
statements show favourable balances.

13.2 The short term financing has been obtained to meet working capital requirements of the company and to settle bank's
financing ( note 8.2.4).

13.3  Mark-up is charged at the same rates which are being charged by the bank to the associated company ranging from
8.26% to 8.92% (2017: 8.22% to 8.28% ) per annum.

14 CURRENT PORTION OF LONG TERM FINANCING
Long term financing from commercial banks 8 - 65,288,898
- 65,288,898

15 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

15.1 CONTINGENCIES

15.1.1 During the year 2011, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue issued order u/s 161/205 for tax year 2010 on
November 10, 2011 demanding tax liability amounting to Rs. 50,349,214. The Company preferred appeal before the
Learned Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals Lahore. The Learned Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeal Lahore
(CIR-A) reduced the demand to Rs. 2,044,547 and remanded back the case in respect of remaining demand. The
Company, however, preferred appeal on before the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal Lahore which is pending for
adjudication.

At the same time, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue finalized the remanded back proceedings u/s 161/205
demanding a tax liability of Rs. 4,460,664 comprising of Rs. 2,115,578 in respect of the above demand u/s 161 and Rs.
2,345,086 in respect of default surcharge u/s 205 on May 04, 2016. The Company has preferred an appeal before the
CIR-Appeals on against the said default surcharge of Rs. 2,345,086/-. The same has been heard on 15-12-2017 but the
appellate order is still awaited.

However, no provision has been made in these financial statements as the management of the company is confident of
favourable outcome of such appeals.

15.1.2 During the year 2015, Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued order u/s 161/205 on April 27, 2010 for tax
year 2009 and raised impugned demand of Rs. 1,968,012. The Company preferred appeal on before the Commissioner
Inland Revenue Appeals which is pending for adjudication. However, no provision has been made in these financial
statements as the management of the company is confident of favourable outcome.

15.1.3 During the year 2016, proceedings u/s 122(5A) were initiated by Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue for tax year
2010 by imposing minimum tax u/s 113 on May 05, 2014 and creating a demand of Rs. 4,187,861. The Company
preferred appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals-Il {(CIR-A) Lahore against the order passed by the
Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue in respect of issue of minimum tax which is a legal issue and the same has
been heard on 15-12-2017, however, the appellate order is still awaited.

However, no provision has been made in these financial statements as the management of the company is confident of
favourable outcome.
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16 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Oostor | gostor | surplusidefict| "M | Transtered to | Gross book S Net book val
assessed OS 4 urpius, eIICI assels rlans erred (0 r0SS DOOI Revaluation! | For the yearl et booK value
DESCRIPTION additions / | on revaluation o investment | value as on y As on July ) As on June 30, || as on June 30,
vaueas on | “oiion) | ofassets | CESMEABS | Ty |vunean 2ota| e | gy apqy | Transter | adiusiments [T 2018
July 01,2017 held for Sale | PTOPeY ’ ' adjustments | on disposals)
Rupees Rupees
Land - freehold 79,900,000 8,225,000 (88,125,000} - - - - - - -
Building on freehold lan 45,854,800 694,244 (45,293,990} - 38-10 - (1,285,054} 1,285,054 - -
{1,285,054) 6.2-167
Plant and machinery 111,704,868 - {71,467,850) = 11,020,746 - {4,265 465) 7,434,939 1,739,068 9,281,678
(29,216,272) - (1,430,406)
Furniture and fittings 3,107,005 - - 3,107,005 10 2,582,847 - 52,416 2,635,263 471,742
Vehicles 3,543,180 - - 3,483,880 20 3,036,918 - 101,252 3,081,117 402,763
(59,300) (57,053)
Electrical appliances 2,101,539 . - 2101539 10 1,459,153 - 64,230 1523392 578,147
Office equipment 9,628,505 4,600 - 9,625,605 10 6,608,215 - 301,853 6,906,103 2,719,502
{1,500) . . {3,965)
2018 Rupees 255,869,897 4,600 7,634,190 (71,467,850) (133,418,990) 29,338,775 13,687,133 (5,550,519) 9,239,753 15,884,943 13,453,832
{29,283,072) (1,491,424
DEPRECIATION
a(s;::;:erd Costof | Surplus/deficit No::;t;:;ent Transferred to | Gross book For the year! Net book value
DESCRIPTION additions / | on revaluation " investment | value as on . AsonJuly | Revaluation | . As on June 30,] as on June 30,
value 25 on {deletion) of assets classified as roperty  [June 30, 2017 Rate % 01,2016 | adjustments (acjustments 2017 2017
July 01, 2016 held for Sale | PP ’ ’ on disposals)
Rupees Rupees
Land - freehold 384,100,000 - 83,250,000 (387,450,000) 79,900,000 . . . - = 79,900,000
Building on freehold land 156,338,719 - 34,685,784 (131,724770) 45884800  3.8-10 7,816,936  (13,414,933) 5,507,997 - 45884800
(13,414,933)
Plant and machinery 170,567,772 - {7,234,286) - 111,704,868 48-10 32,083,683 (51,418,618) 19,377,007 - 111,704,868
(210,000} (51,418,618) 42,072)
Fumiture and fittings 3,107,005 . . . 3,107,005 10 2,524,607 58,240 2,582,847 524,158
3,543,180 - - 3,543,180 20 2,910,352 126,566 3,036,918 506,262
Vehicles 2,101,539 - = 2,101,539 10 1,387,717 71,376 1,458,153 642,386
Electrical appliances 9,086,017 542,488 - 9,628,508 10 6,278,802 329,413 6,608,215 3,020,290
Office equipment -
2017 Rupees 728,844,232 542,488 45,867,947 (619,174,770} 255,869,897 53,002,157 (64,833,551) 25,560,599 13,687,133 242,182,764
(210,000} (42.072)
Note 2018 2017
16.1 Depreciation for the year has been allocated as under : Rupees Rupees
Direct cost 29 8,719,993 24,975,004
Administrative expenses 31 519,760 585,595
9,239,753 25,560,599
16.2 Disposal of fixed assets & assets held for sale
The following are details of disposals during the year:
Cost/ .
Sale Gain/(loss)
. Revalued Book value . .
Particulars proceeds | on disposal | Mode of disposal | Name and address
amount Rs.
Rs. Rs.
Rs.
Operating Fixed Assets:
4 Sulzer looms 4,455,335 4,351,581 6,745,670 2,394,089 By Negotiation Ahsan Rizwan Trading
ith . FZC/SM Office 11, Off No.
with accessories 232 D AR Ajman Free
Zone, UAE.
20 Sulzer looms 22,279,468 21,017,982 29,000,000 7,982,018 By Negotiation Umer Textiles 30, 2C-
ith . 1, Ghosia Chowk, College
with accessories Road, Lahore.
Caterpillar 910 KVA, Prime 1,560,000 1,527,233 1,100,000 (427,233) By Negotiation A&AGenetech 1-Km
Raiwind Road, Lahore.
5 Compressors 921,469 889,070 378,150 (510,920) By Negotiation Mr. Sulman Saeed

40

Lakshami Chowk, 2 Royal
Park, Lahore.
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Cost/ .
Revalued Book value Sale Gain/(loss)
Particulars amount Rs proceeds |on disposal | Mode of disposal | Name and address
’ Rs. Rs.
Rs.
Laser printer HP 4100 7,500 3,535 1,500 (2,035) By Negotiation LA. Enterprises
1-Main Meer Road, Upper
Mall, Lahore.
Honda CD70 motor cycle 59,300 2,247 12,000 9,753 By Negotiation '\E"Uhel‘mmaj 6 E:is s Ex-
mployee ma own,
(LZD - 5029) Droghawala, Lahore.
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
2 Sulzer looms 6,931,417 4,880,477 3,200,000 (1,680,477) By Negotiation Sismi”ah Textiles A25, J-1,
with accessories - T.E. Karach.
14 Sulzer looms 47,142,447 33,193,450 23,456,345 (9,737,105) By Negotiation Gulf Tex Machine FZCO.
. . Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai,
with accessories UAE.
4 Air-jet Looms 10,450,000 10,450,000 10,465,603 15,603 By Negotiation International Heavy
ith accessories Equipment Suit No. 9-10,
Wi Plot No. 153-154, New
Saniya Industrial  Area,
Ajman, UAE.
2018 Rupees 93,806,936 76,315,575 74,359,268 (1,956,307)
2017 Rupees 125,861,071 125,818,998 125,736,226 (82,772)

The Company does not have any direct or indirect relation with the buyers.

16.3

At the time of transfer of Land and Building to Investment property on December 31, 2017, Free - hold land and

buildings on free - hold land were revalued by an independent valuer, Arch-e-decon (Evaluators, Surveyors, Architects
and Engineers), resulting in surplus of Rs. 8.919 million and incorporated in the financial statements for the year ended
June 30, 2018. Previously, five revaluations had been carried out by Arch-e-decon, an independent valuer. First
revaluation was carried out during 2006, second during 2009, third during 2012, fourth during 2015 and fifth during

2017. The basis used for revaluation of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Free - hold land :
Buildinas on free - hold land :

Value of free - hold land ascertained according to the local market value;
Present day construction rates for different types of building structure depreciated to
account for the age and condition of the building;

Plant and machinery : Value has been determined with reference to prevailing prices of similar plants and

machinery depreciated to account for the age, usage and physical condition.
16.4 Free - hold land, buildings on free - hold land and plant and machinery represent values subsequent to revaluations.
Had there been no revaluation, carrying amount of the revalued assets would have been as follows:

2018
Rupees
Free - hold land -
Buildings on free - hold land -
Plant and machinery 1,653,082
1,653,082

2017
Rupees

1,062,969
3,069,219
45,927,238
50,059,426

Note

16.5

Forced sale value of revalued assets amounts to Rs. 6,961,259 (2017: Rs. 190,695,731).
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N 2018 2017
ote
Rupees Rupees
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Fair values as at July 01
Free hold land 487,900,000 -
Buildings on freehold land 132,449,770 -
620,349,770 -
Transferred from property, plant and equipment during the year
Free hold land 16 88,125,000 || 387,450,000
Buildings on freehold land 16 45,293,990 | 131,724,770
133,418,990 519,174,770
Additions in buildings during the year - 722,190
Carrying value before revaluation as at June 30
Free hold land 576,025,000 (| 387,450,000
Buildings on freehold land 177,743,760 | | 132,446,960
e . 753,768,760 519,896,960
Changes in fair values during the ear:
Free hold land 91,975,000 || 100,450,000
Buildings on freehold land (1,723,875 2,810
90,251,125 100,452,810
Fair values as at June 30
Free hold land 668,000,000 (| 487,900,000
Buildings on freehold land 176,019,885 132,449,770
844,019,885 620,349,770

17.1  As of reporting date, investment properties comprise of freehold land and buildings on free hold land transferred from
property, plant and equipment on January 31, 2017 and December 31, 2017.

17.2 Latest valuation of these properties has been carried out on June 30, 2018 by an independent valuer, M/s Arch-e’ Decon.

17.3 The different levels have been defined as follows:
- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1],
- Inputs other than quoted prices included with level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) [Level 2].
- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs) [Level 3].

Recurring fair value measurements
There are no level 1 and level 3 assets or transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during 2017.

Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values:

At the end of each financial year, the management updates its assessment of the fair value of the investment properties,
taking into account the most recent independent valuation. The management determines the properties’ value within a
range of reasonable fair value Estimates. Level 2 fair value of investment properties has been derived using a sales
comparison approach. Sale prices of comparable land in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes
such as location and size of the property. The most significant input into this valuation approach is price per square feet.

17.4 Particulars of immovable investment property (i.e. land & building) are as follows:

The investment properties comprise of 167 Knanal land and civil structure thereon having 250,720 Sq. feet covered
area situated at 32 K.m Multan Road, Sunder, Lahore.

17.5 Forced sale value of such free hold land and buildings on free hold land on June 30, 2018 was Rs.567,800,000 and
Rs.149,616,902 respectively.

18 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Advances - secured and considered good 18.1 58,000 209,000
18.1 Advances to:
Employees 80,000 281,000
Less: Current portion (22,000 (72,000)
58,000 209,000
18.2 Loans to employees are secured against retirement benefits. Maximum aggregate amount in respect of loan extended to
42 employees is at the discretion of the Board of Directors.
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ICC Textiles Limited

Note Rupees || Rupees
19 LONG TERM DEPOSITS P p
Security deposits 19.1 1,629,034 1,629,034
1,629,034 1,629,034
19.1  Security deposits mainly include security deposits for electricity connection.
20 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 5,723,739 5,683,849
Spare parts 8,772,329 8,684,466
Packing materials 64,708 64,395
Loose tools 1,319,887 1,368,462
15,880,663 15,801,172
21 STOCK IN TRADE
Raw materials - 204,332
Work in process - 68,500
Finished goods 734,477 734,477
Scrap / waste - 28,458
734,477 1,035,767
22 TRADE DEBTS - Considered good
Local - Unsecured - 127,448
- 127,448
23 LOANS AND ADVANCES
Advances - unsecured but considered good:
to executives - against salaries and expenses 231 141,622 26,205
to employees - against salaries and expenses 402,307 235,638
to suppliers 190,736 168,064
734,665 429,907
734,665 429,907

231

The maximum aggregate amount due from executives at the end of any month was Rs. 141,622 (2017: Rs. 26,205).

24 SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Prepayments 824,090 777,338
Export rebate receivable 568,331 568,331
1,392,421 1,345,669
25 TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT
Income tax refundable - net 27,763,852 29,585,351
Sales tax refundable 9,881,804 10,415,475
37,645,656 40,000,826
26 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 24,357 58,959
Cash at banks:
Current accounts 26.1 1,335,052 393,128
Deposit accounts ’ 2,901 3,120
1,337,953 396,248
1,362,310 455,207

27

26.1
NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

Deposit accounts carry interest @ 4% (2017: 7%) per annum.

These represent realizable value of following assets pertaining to discontinued operations of textile segment ( refer note 42)
classified as held for sale. The proceeds will be utilized as working capital and to reduce debt burden in order to reduce finance
cost of the company, as per plan approved by Board of Directors. ( mentioned in note 1.2 ):

43
-
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Note 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
Plant and equipment:
Sulzer looms related equipment, warping and sizing machine 271 18,567,862 6,240,000
Air-jet looms with back process and allied equipment 27.2 - 10,450,000
18,567,862 16,690,000
271 Sulzer Looms, warping and sizing machine
Opening balance (23 looms & warping and sizing machine) 6,240,000 31,409,070
Carrying value transferred from property, plant and equipment 67,202,385 -
Carrying amount of assets disposed off during the year 16.2 (38,073,927) (20,909,070)
Decrease in revaluation surplus (16,800,596) (4,260,000)
Closing balance 18,567,862 6,240,000
27.2 Air-jet Looms with back process and allied equipment
Opening balance - 4 looms (2017: 78 looms ) 10,450,000 115,192,001
Carrying amount of assets disposed off during the year 16.2 (10,450,000) (104,742,001)
Closing balance - 10,450,000
27.3 The management expects sale of these assets within 12 months of reporting date.
28 REVENUE
Rental income 15,363,305 9,909,550
15,363,305 9,909,550
28.1 Rental income pertains to investment properties ( refer note 17).
29 DIRECT COST
Salaries, wages and other benefits 29.1 6,501,350 -
Fuel and power 1,763,475 -
Insurance 116,798 -
Repairs and maintenance 2,036,623 -
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 16.1 1,739,068 -
12,157,314 -

291 Salaries, wages and other benefits include post retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 1,069,560 (2017: Rs. 1,586,057
regrouped in discontinued operations)

30 DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and other benefits 301 310,675 -
Vehicles running and maintenance 27,898 -
Communication 13,764 -
Other expenses 16,864 -

369,201 -

30.1  Salaries and other benefits include post retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 82,366 (2017: Rs. 262,764 regrouped in
discontinued operations)

31 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits 311 17,967,170 594,573
Travelling and conveyance 110,989 -
Rent, rates and taxes 1,249,930 -
Printing and stationery 313,996 -
Communication 628,878 -
Vehicles running and maintenance 1,853,250 -
Entertainment 650,162 -
Repairs and maintenance 236,510 -
Utility expenses 529,662 -
Legal and professional 1,027,300 -
Subscription 237,768 -
Insurance 310,760 -
Advertisement 180,302 -
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 16.1 519,760 -
44 25,816,437 594,573
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31,1 Salaries and other benefits include post retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 4,763,409 (2017: Rs. 5,482,406
regrouped in discontinued operations).

Note 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
32 OTHER EXPENSES
Auditors' remuneration 321 746,191 -
Others 120,717 -
866,908 -
321 Auditors' remuneration
Audit fee 500,000 -
Half yearly review 50,000 -
Code of Corporate Governance review 25,000 -
Tax representation and consultancy fee 151,691 -
Out of pocket expenses 19,500 -
746,191 -
33 OTHER INCOME
Income on financial assets
Interest on deposit accounts 2,752 -
Income on assets other than financial assets
Others 300 -
3,052 -
34 FINANCE COST
Mark-up on:
- Financing from directors 25,622,318 7,165,206
- Financing from associated company 900,184 126,328
- Short term borrowings - 2,111,554
Unwinding of discount 22,854,412 11,354,270
Amortization of transaction cost - 297,619
Bank charges 261,438 97,076
49,638,352 21,152,053
35 TAXATION
Provision for taxation:
Current tax expense 351 3,410,654 2,273,251
Deferred tax income 6.2 (462,828) -

2,947,826 2,273,251

35.1 Provision for rental income has been made at the current rate of corporate tax after taking into account allowable
deductions / exemptions available under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

35.2 As per the management’s assessment, sufficient tax provision has been made in the Company’s financial statements.
The comparison of tax provision as per the financial statements viz-a-viz tax assessment for last three years is as

follows:
2017 2016 2015
Rupees Rupees Rupees
Tax provision as per financial statements 2,931,579 389,776 1,638,893

Tax assessment 2,928,991 662,451 1,314,584
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36 PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAXATION FROM Note 2018 2017
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS Rupees Rupees
Revenue 36.1 191,412 21,973,641
Direct cost 36.2 (12,561,244) (88,644,926)
Gross loss (12,369,832) (66,671,285)
Operating Expenses:
Distribution cost 36.3 - (2,529,582)
Administrative expenses 36.4 - (30,801,290)
Other expenses 36.5 (2,112,972) (1,689,395)
(2,112,972) (35,020,267)
(14,482,804) (101,691,552)
Other income 36.6 5,765,120 40,090,301
Operating loss before finance cost (8,717,684) (61,601,251)
Finance cost 36.7 - (29,612,874)
Loss before taxation (8,717,684) (91,214,125)
Taxation:
- Current tax expense 36.8 (303,935) (217,606)
- Prior years tax expense (627,507) (440,722)
- Deferred tax income 6.2 11,861,277 10,268,478
10,929,835 9,610,150
Profit / (loss) after taxation - discontinued operations 2,212,151 (81,603,975)
36.1 Revenue - sale of cloth
- Export - 2,821,869
- Local - 12,943,892
- Claim in respect of local sales - 2,370,450
- 18,136,211
Waste 191,412 2,865,672
Processing income - 3,127,766
191,412 24,129,649
Commission - (2,156,008)
191,412 21,973,641
36.1.1 Sales are exclusive of sales tax amounting to Rs. 6,233 (2017: Rs. 84,593 )
36.2 Direct cost
Raw materials consumed 36.2.1 - 3,321,990
Salaries, wages and other benefits 4,871,784 24,653,095
Fuel and power - 4,930,999
Stores and spares consumed 189,147 11,330,264
Processing charges - 419,616
Insurance - 450,050
Repairs and maintenance 251,430 2,449,852
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 6,980,925 24,975,004
Others 171,000 2,714,362
Adjustment of work-in-process 12,464,286 75,245,232
Opening stock 68,500 4,880,817
Closing stock - (68,500)
68,500 4,812,317
Adjustment of finished goods and waste
Opening stock 762,935 8,489,330
Purchases - 860,982
Closing stock (734,477) (762,935)
28,458 8,587,377
12,561,244 88,644,926
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2018 2017
Note
Rupees Rupees
36.2.1 Raw materials consumed
Opening stock 204,332 1,181,799
Purchases - 2,195,025
Freight and octroi - 149,498
- 2,344,523
Sale (204,332) -
Closing stock - (204,332)
- 3,321,990
36.3 Distribution cost
Salaries and other benefits - 1,892,964
Vehicles running and maintenance - 131,939
Communication - 104,575
Freight, shipment and others - 353,346
Other expenses - 46,758
- 2,529,582
36.4 Administration expenses
Salaries and other benefits - 19,287,499
Travelling and conveyance - 1,095,628
Rent, rates and taxes - 3,066,720
Printing and stationery - 583,205
Communication - 689,317
Vehicles running and maintenance - 1,804,439
Entertainment - 885,708
Repairs and maintenance - 364,665
Utility expenses - 875,535
Legal and professional - 1,068,200
Subscription - 247,800
Insurance - 158,279
Advertisement - 88,700
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment - 585,595
36.5 Other expenses = 30,801,290
Auditors' remuneration 36.5.1 - 744,901
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment & non-current
assets classified as held for sale 1,956,307 82,772
Loss on sale of raw materials 63,282 -
Debtors written off 93,383 792,938
Others - 68,784
2,112,972 1,689,395
36.5.1 Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fee - 500,000
Half yearly review - 50,000
Code of Corporate Governance review - 26,250
Tax representation and consultancy fee - 145,781
Out of pocket expenses - 22,870
- 744,901
36.6 Other income
Income on financial assets
Interest on deposit accounts - 18
Income on assets other than financial assets
Mark-up waived off 8.2.2 4,909,730 21,884,404
Trade creditors written back 755,390 9,597,838
Amortization of commercial bank interest free loans - 8,604,541
Others 100,000 3,500

5,765,120 40,090,301

47
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Note 2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
36.7 Finance cost
Mark-up on:
- Financing from directors - 10,031,288
- Financing from associated company - 176,859
- Short term borrowings - 2,956,176

Unwinding of discount

- 15,895,979

Amortization of transaction cost - 416,667
Bank charges - 135,906
- 29,612,874

36.8 Taxation

36.8.1 Provision for income tax has been made in the accounts for tax on export proceeds @ 1% under final tax regime u/s
154 plus 1% of local sales under minimum tax regime u/s 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

36.8.2 As the Company's taxable income fall under final tax regime and there are carry forward business losses, the

reconciliation of applicable and effective tax rate is not meaningful.

37 EARNING/ (LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Earning/(Loss) per share is calculated by dividing profit /(loss) after tax for the period by weighted average number of shares

outstanding during the year as follows:

Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders from continued operations (amount in rupees) 16,033,595 4,738,508
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders from discontinued operations ( amount in

rupees ) 2,212,151 (81,603,975)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 30,001,120 30,001,120
Earning/(loss) per share - Basic and diluted

- From Continuing Operations 0.46 2.88
- From Discontinued Operations 0.07 (2.72)
- Total 0.53 0.16

48

38

37.1 No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any instruments carrying
options which would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company has exposures to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market Risk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

38.1 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the financial loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if the counter parties fail completely to
perform as contracted.

Credit risk arises principally from loans and advances, trade debts, deposits, other receivables and bank balances. Out of total
financial assets of Rs. 3.593 million (2017: Rs. 2.683 million), the financial assets that are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs.
3.569 million (2017: Rs. 2.624 million).

The Company monitors the credit quality of the financial assets with reference to the historical performance of such assets and
available external credit ratings.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rate. The table below shows the bank balances and investment
held with some major counterparties at the date of statement of financial position.

Banks Rating Agency June 2018 June 2017
Short term Long term { Rupees ) ( Rupees )
Allied Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 1,953 6,351
MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 63,352 59,196
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 8,359 14,421
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA 2,922 3,854
United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA JCR-VIS 728 290,345
Faysal Bank Limited A1+ AA PACRA 7,780 -
Bank Al Habib Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA 1,252,859 22,081
Total 1,337,953 396,248
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The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date is: 2018 2017
{ Rupees ) ( Rupees )
Past due 1-30 days - 34,075
Past due 31-150 days - 9,211
Past due over 150 days - 84,162
- 127,448

38.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company’s reputation. The Company uses different methods which assists it in monitoring cash flow requirements. Typically,
the Company ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses for a reasonable period,
including the servicing of financial obligation.

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2018:

Carrying Less than one One to five More than five

amount year years years

{ Rupees ) ( Rupees ) ( Rupees ) { Rupees )
Long term financing from directors 551,524,401 - 246,262,267 305,262,134
Long term financing from commercial banks - - - -
Trade and other payables 91,949,559 91,949,559 - -
Accrued markup 29,833,050 29,833,050 - -
Short term borrowings 35,810,966 35,810,966 - -
Total 709,117,976 157,593,575 246,262,267 305,262,134

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2017:
Carrying Less than one One to five More than five
amount year years years

( Rupees ) { Rupees ) { Rupees ) ( Rupees )
Long term financing from directors 501,588,618 136,976,963 214,253,965 150,357,690
Long term financing from commercial banks 65,288,898 65,288,898 - -
Trade and other payables 104,691,740 104,691,740 - -
Accrued markup 25,923,989 25,923,989 - -
Short term borrowings 4,331,979 4,331,979 - -
Deferred mark-up 4,909,730 4,909,730
Total 706,734,954 342,123,299 214,253,965 150,357,690

38.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect
the Company's value of its financial instruments.

a) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Company is not materially exposed to any currency risk.

b) Interest risk

The interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

At the reporting date, the variable interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial instruments was as
follows:

2018 2017
Effective rate of interest

June 2018 June 2017
Carrying value in Rupees

Variable rate instruments

Financial liabilities

Long term financing from directors 4.15% -8.86%  5.39% - 8.29% 386,262,267 351,230,928

Short term borrowings 8.26% to 8.92% 8.22% to 12.26% 35,810,966 4,331,979

Total 422,073,233 355,562,907

Financial assets

Cash at bank - deposit accounts 4% 7% 2,901 3,120

Total 2,901 3,120 49
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) loss for the year by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The

analysis is performed on the same basis for 2017. . . .
Profit or loss 100 basis points

Increase Decrease
Rupees Rupees
As at 30 June 2018
Cash flow sensitivity-Variable rate financial liabilities 4,220,732 (4,220,732)
As at 30 June 2017
Cash flow sensitivity-Variable rate financial liabilities 3,585,859 (3,585,859)

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on loss for the year and assets / liabilities of the
Company.

c) Equity price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused
by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in
the market. The Company is not exposed to equity price risk as the Company does not hold investments whose fair value or
future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in fair value.

38.4 Financial instruments by categories

Available for sale Loans and receivables Total
June 2018 June 2017  June 2018 June 2017 June 2018 June 2017
Rupees
Financial assets
Loans and advances - - 601,929 470,843 601,929 470,843
Deposits - - 1,629,034 1,629,034 1,629,034 1,629,034
Trade debts - - - 127,448 - 127,448
Cash and bank balances - - 1,362,310 455,207 1,362,310 455,207
Total - - 3,693,273 2,682,532 3,593,273 2,682,532
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
June 2018 June 2017
(Rupees) (Rupees)
Financial liabilities
Long term financing from directors 551,524,401 501,588,618
Long term financing from commercial banks - 65,288,898
Trade and other payables 91,949,559 104,691,740
Accrued markup/interest 29,833,050 25,923,989
Security deposits 5,546,163 7,853,730
Unclaimed dividened 1,662,656 1,662,656
Short term borrowings 35,810,966 4,331,979
Total 716,326,795 711,341,610

38.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities reflected in financial statements approximate their fair values.
Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

38.6 Fair Value
Fair value is the amount that would be received on sale of an asset or paid on transfer of a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying values and fair
value estimates. Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without any
intention requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

IFRS 13, 'Fair value Measurements' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using fair value hierarchy that

reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
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Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table shows the categories as well as carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets according to there
respective category, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy for financial instruments measured at fair value. It does not
include fair value information for financial assets not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is reasonable approximation

of fair value:
Carrying amount Fair Value
; Cash and Available | Fair value
Rupees in thousand cash "°af‘s :?d for sale through Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
equivalents | ©°€'V37'®S |instruments|profit or loss

June 30,2018 e Rupees ---mmoeecmcceee e Rupees --------m--nrnnn
Financial assets

measured at fair value - - - - - -

Financial assets not

measured at fair value

Non-current assets

Long term deposits - 1,629,034 - - 1,629,034 - - - -
Current assets

Trade debts-unsecured - - -
543,929 - - 543,929 - - - -

Loans and advances -
Cash and bank balances 1,362,310 - - - 1,362,310 - - - -
1,362,310 2,172,963 - - 3,535,273 - - - -

June 30, 2017

Financial assets

measured at fair value - - - - - - - - -
Financial assets not

measured at fair value

Non-current assets

Long term deposits - 1,629,034 - - 1,629,034 - - - -
Current assets

Trade debts-unsecured - 127,448 - - 127,448 - - - -
Loans and advances - 261,843 - - 261,843 - - - -
Cash and bank balances 455,207 - - - 455,207 - - - -

455,207 2,018,325

The company deos not hold any financial liability at fair value.

38.7 Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it
can continue to provide adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and to maintain a strong capital
base to support the sustained development of its businesses.

The Company manages its capital structure which comprises capital and reserves by monitoring return on net assets and
makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, appropriation of amounts to capital reserves or/and issue
new shares.

2,473,532

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company manages its capital risk by monitoring its debt levels and liquid assets and
keeping in view future investment requirements and expectations of the shareholders. Debt is calculated as total borrowings
("long term financing" and "short term borrowings" as shown in the balance sheet). Total capital comprises shareholders' equity
as shown in the balance sheet under "share capital, reserves and surplus on revaluation and net debt".

The salient information relating to capital risk management of the Company at year end were as follows:

2018 2017

Rupees Rupees
Total borrowings 587,335,367 571,209,495
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 1,362,310 455,207
Net debt 585,973,057 570,754,288
Total equity (including surplus on revaluation) 133,264,043 116,127,459
Total capital 719,237,100 686,881,747
Gearing ratio 81.47 83.09

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Related parties comprise of associated companies, directors and their close family members, executives and major
shareholders of the Company. Remuneration and benefits to executives of the Company are in accordance with the terms of
their employment. Outstanding balances with related parties at reporting dates are disclosed in relevant notes. Transactions
with related parties during the year, other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, are as follows:
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40

1

Long term borrowing obtained from directors - interest bearing

Short term borrowing obtained from ICC (Private) Limited - interest bearing
Interest on loan debited by ICC (Private) Limited
Reimbursable expenses incurred on behalf of ICC (Private) Limited
Reimbursable expenses incurred by ICC (Private) Limited
Unwinding of discount on loans from directors

Interest on loan obtained from directors

Remuneration payable to Chief Executive Officer

2018 2017
Rupees Rupees
32,008,302 214,253,965
32,270,000 333,800

900,184 126,328
13,373,566 2,810,878
17,117 2,384,759
17,927,481 16,764,244
25,622,318 7,165,206
10,542,090 2,108,418

39.1 Interest on interest bearing long term financing and short term borrowing is charged at the same rates which are
charged by the banks to the associated company/director.
39.2 ICC (Private) Limited is associated due to common directorship.
REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
2018 2017
Description Chief Chief
Executive Directors | Executives| Executive Directors Executives
Officer Officer
Rupees
Managerial remuneration 5,816,328 - - 1,454,082 -
House rent allowance 2,617,344 - - 654,336 -
Rupees 8,433,672 - - 2,108,418 -

No. of person(s)

40.1
40.2
40.3
404

1

6

- 1

Chief executive is provided with Company maintained car as per rules of the Company.
No meeting fee was paid to the directors for attending meetings of the Board.

Other directors of the Company have opted not to take any remuneration from the Company voluntarily.

Companies Act, 2017 has changed the definition of executives. Accordingly, prior year fingures has been restated.

July 2017 - June 2018

July 2016 - June 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit / (loss) for the year before taxation
Adjustments for non cash income and expenses:

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment

Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment & non-current assets classified as
held for sale

Amortization of interest free loan

Unwinding of discount

Amortization of transaction cost

Changes in fair value of investment properties
Gratuity

Finance cost

Change in working capital:
Increase / (decrease ) in Current assets:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Short term prepayments and other receivables|
Sales tax refundable

Increase / (decrease ) in Current liabilities:

Trade and other payables
Security deposits

Increase / ( Decrease) in working capital
Net cash (used in) / from operations

Continuing |Discontinued Continuing Discontinued
Operations Operations Operations Operations

Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees

16,769,270 (8,717,684) 88,615,734 (91,214,125)

2,258,828 6,980,925 - 25,560,599

- 1,956,307 - 82,772

- - (8,604,541) -

22,854,412 - 27,250,249 -

- - 714,286 -

(90,251,125) - (100,452,810) -

5,915,335 - - 7,331,227

26,783,940 - 9,500,163 13,300,229

(32,438,610) 8,937,232 (71,592,653) 46,274,827

(15,669,340) 219,548 17,023,081 (44,939,298)

- 79,491 - 9,322,728

(301,290) - 13,516,179

- (127,448) - 9,449,175

304,758 - - 3,173,427

46,752 - - 314,165

(533,671) - 34,365

351,510 (882,918) - 35,810,039

- | (12,742,181) - (54,651,993)

(2,307,567) - 7,853,730 -

(2,307,567) (12,742,181) 7,853,730 (54,651,993)

(2,659,077) (11,859,263) 7,853,730 (90,462,032)

(18,328,417) (11,639,715) 24,876,811 (63,781,252)
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42 REPORTABLE SEGMENT
The Company has following two strategic divisions, which are reportable segments.

REPORTABLE SEGMENTS  NATURE OF OPERATIONS:

1. TEXTILES UNIT Manufacturing and sale of greige fabric
2. REAL ESTATE SEGMENT Renting out of Factory buildings and / or open area plus appreciation in investment
properties

The management reviews internal management of each division.
421 INFORMATION ABOUT REPORTING SEGMENTS

Information to each reportable segment is given below:
42.1.1: SEGMENT PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNTS

[ 2018 I 2017 |
[ Textiles Real Estate | Total |[[ Textiles | Real Estate | Total |
Rupees Rupees

Sales 191,412 15,363,305 15,554,717 21,973,641 9,909,550 31,883,191

Direct cost (12,561,244)  (12,157,314) (24,718,558) (88,644,926) - (88,644,926)

Gross loss (12,369,832) 3,205,991 (9,163,841) (66,671,285) 9,909,550 (56,761,735)

Distribution cost - (369,201) (369,201) (2,529,582) - (2,529,582)

Administrative expenses - (25,816,437) (25,816,437) (30,801,290) (594,573)  (31,395,863)

Other expenses (2,112,972) (866,908) (2,979,880) (1,689,395) - (1,689,395)

Other income 5,765,120 3,052 5,768,172 40,090,301 - 40,090,301

Operating loss (8,717,684)  (23,843,503) (32,561,187) (61,601,251) 9,314,977 (52,286,274)

Finance cost - (49,638,352) (49,638,352) (29,612,874) (21,152,053)  (50,764,927)

Change in fair value of investment property - 90,251,125 90,251,125 - 100,452,810 100,452,810

Loss before taxation (8,717,684) 16,769,270 8,051,586 (91,214,125) 88,615,734 (2,598,391)

Taxation 10,929,835 (2,947,826) 7,982,009 9,610,150 (2,273,251) 7,336,899

Profit/ (Loss) after taxation 2,212,151 13,821,444 16,033,595 (81,603,975) 86,342,483 4,738,508

42.1.2: SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABLITIES

2018 2017
Textiles Real Estate | Total Textiles | Real Estate | Total
Rupees Rupees

Segment assets for reportable segment 35,183,002 859,160,751 894,343,753 319,906,794 620,349,770 940,256,564

Unallocated corporate assets - - 41,135,052 - -

Total assets as per statement of financial position 935,478,805 940,256,564

Segment liabilities for reportable segment - 7,772,911 7,772,911 - 13,617,660 13,617,660

Unallocated corporate liabilities - - 927,705,894 - - 926,638,904

Total liabilities as per statement of financial position 935,478,805 940,256,564

43 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES | 2018 || 2017 |
Number of employees at the end of the year 49 81
Average number of employees during the year 65 266
Number of employees at the end of the year - Factory 29 52
Average number of employees during the year - Factory a1 215
44 CAPACITY INSTALLED AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION | 2018 || 2017 |

No. of looms (including held for sale) - 44
No. of looms worked - 40
Shifts per day - 2
No. of days actually worked - 62
Rated capacity (Square Meters in millions) - 7.40
Actual production  (Square Meters in millions)

- Production - own - 0.11

- Production - conversion basis - 0.18

- Total Production - 0.29

It is difficult to determine precisely the production / rated capacity in textile weaving mills since it fluctuates widely depending on
various factors such as speed, width and construction of cloth woven etc.
Production was suspended through out the year as the Company has disposed off its all looms.
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45 FIGURES

- Figures in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

- Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and / or reclassified, where ever considered necessary, for the purpose of better
presentation of the financial statements. However, no significant reclassification has been made in these financial statements
except for reclassification of surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment as equity (refer Note 4.19), disclosure of
discontinuing operations and consolidation of profit or loss account and statement of other comprehensive income into a
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

46 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and authorized for issue on
November 06, 2018.

Statement under section 232 of the Companies Act, 2017
The Chief Executive is currently out of country. Therefore, the Board of Directors of the company has authorised two
Directors and Chief Financial Officer to sign these financial statements.

Sd- Sd- Sd-
Director Director Chief Financial Officer
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FORM 34

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f)
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING OF THE SHARES
HELD BY THE SHAREHOLDERS AS ON JUNE 30, 2018

No. of Shareholding Total
Shareholders From To Shares Held
165 1 100 12,429
982 101 500 458,685
116 501 1,000 114,047
139 1,001 5,000 412,529
46 5,001 10,000 372,839
22 10,001 15,000 273,198
10 15,001 20,000 173,073
9 20,001 25,000 201,600
3 25,001 30,000 81,500
4 35,001 40,000 146,000
2 45,001 50,000 100,000
1 90,001 95,000 92,000
1 95,001 100,000 99,500
1 105,001 110,000 110,000
1 115,001 120,000 119,500
1 120,001 125,000 125,000
5 125,001 130,000 633,612
1 130,001 135,000 130,500
1 135,001 140,000 139,900
1 155,001 160,000 158,900
1 165,001 170,000 168,950
2 175,001 180,000 354,720
1 190,001 195,000 194,500
1 195,001 200,000 200,000
1 230,001 235,000 235,000
2 235,001 240,000 473,000
1 270,001 275,000 271,120
1 2,190,001 2,195,000 2,194,788
1 4,455,001 4,460,000 4,457,918
1 7,710,001 7,715,000 7,714,933
1 9,780,001 9,785,000 9,781,379

1,524 30,001,120
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
FORM-34 AS ON JUNE 30, 2018

Categories of Shareholders

1

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their
spouse and minor children

Mr. Javaid Shafiq Siddiqi

Mr. Javaid Shafiq Siddiqi (CDC)
Mr. Pervaiz Shafiq Siddigi (CDC)
Mrs. Fauzia Javaid

Mrs. Fauzia Javaid (CDC)

Mr. Salman Javaid Siddigi (CDC)
Mr. Asim Pervaiz Siddigi (CDC)
Mr. Adnan Javaid Siddiqi

Mr. Arsalan Javaid Siddiqi

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

NIT & ICP
Investment Corp. of Pakistan

Public Sector Companies and Corporations

4

10

56

Banks, Development Financial Institutions and Non Banking
Financial Institutions

Insurance Companies

Modaraba and Mutual Funds
Total

General Public
a. Local
b. Foreign

Other ( to be specified)
Joint Stock Companies
Pension Funds
Others
Total

Grand Total

Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest
Mr. Javaid Shafiq Siddiqi
Mr. Pervaiz Shafiq Siddiqi
Total

Shareholders holding 5% or more voting interest
Mr. Javaid Shafiq Siddiqi
Mr. Pervaiz Shafiq Siddiqi
Mrs. Fauzia Javaid
Total

Shares held

Percentage

4,457,918 14.86
9,781,379 32.60
7,714,933 25.72
179,300 0.60
2,194,788 7.32
1,000 0.00
1,000 0.00
1,000 0.00

500 0.00
24331818 81.10
1,400 0.00
5,092 0.02
158,900 0.53

0 0.00

163,992 0.55
5,476,207 18.25
12,101 0.04
15,073 0.05

529 0.00

27,703 0.09
30,001,120 100.00
14,239,297 47.46
7,714,933 25.72
21,954,230 73.18
14,239,297 47.46
7,714,933 25.72
2,374,088 7.91
24328318 81.09
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FORM OF PROXY

The Company Secretary
ICC Textiles Ltd.

242-A, Anand Road
Upper Mall, Lahore

we
o being a member of ICC TEXTILES
LIMITED and holderof Ordinary Shares as per share
Register FolioNo. and/or CDC Participant IDNo. and Sub AccountNo.
Hereby appoint
of

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company to be held at its Registered Office 242-A, Anand Road, Upper Mall, Lahore on
Tuesday, the November 27, 2018 at 10:30 a.m. and at every adjournment thereof.

Signed this ... Day of N p_v_e_’_n_l??[ ___________ 2018.
WITNESSES
1 Signature:

Name: TTTTTTTTTTTTToTTTTTTTTTTTTYT

Address:

CNIC or
Passport
No.

Signature
2 Signature:
Name: TTTTTTTTTTToTTTTTTTTTTTTYT
Address:

CNIC or
Passport
No.

Note : Proxies, in order to be effective must be received by the Company not less than 48 hours
before the meeting, duly completed in all respects

CDC shareholders and their Proxies are requested to attach an attested photocopy of
their National Identity Card or Passport with the proxy form before submission to the
Company.

57
-



N\

9

.
ey

Grk

2 Hel 55T

el o Jgl 02T 242-A

JU Ant
VSIS Pl s {7 e 2
o O Ju P gk

3220 FZ10:30 B 10 2018 29 27 Btz el b bl gs 30L Fe 3 S el o on b
Lt terl Ll S E Lt s e e 242-A s 53T

: et bz Sow ity St T

...... s
Sedigadurzte
SVINENS Y
o
-2 -1

(lt rL’

£
X

AEFES T AKEES T

/'.}b“/'.‘.'L. /:}&/KE

FEY o ptondmd I a800fe B (Fppskbrd Livdofc sy, o
b /f;!ﬁ/gﬁu"v‘:( Z Il :n;/(d&g.ﬁ@:dl('%mw ;ull:ﬁlgl[uﬁ/?”(w”li)‘fq/v
,n;/z‘g&%ﬂiiz“.w” sleSE !

o J%ﬁ@wﬁ&w{ggbg&éwuwipBu”/:u/‘guLé):,uw’u'éuu,uﬂn.v%u;dsgj _r
s

58



ICC Textiles Limited

NP )

e 43.218, 0 BIL 2017 S &0 40.078 L BIL B ES Ea S

U’U?’LG"";J’M!
4,5{)_5gdﬁthu?mﬁf/uu,ar_,_ﬁ(&fﬁgm‘éwové&ﬂﬁu’ L e 3T AT 2018 wze 2017 (U2l

$Ab ISy

i
JAEGTLY

w7 G s -1
14 B JJ;MJ? Ve -2
2 7 Aol 3? -3
8 Fowpore 4
24 8 G":M g;/?("lp -5
w 3 Faessly tu -6
e B G aossloiot -7

J'f.:}f
w7 Fasprbpl -1
w7 &;M ..' 4 -2
s 7 ,gstg:};’ -3

$Ab ISy
G"'":Tj:;lﬂ &

241 (:E:Mdf; b4 -1
241 &Mﬁj Ak -2
241 &M 45/7f’ta -3

fﬂn/’.‘?Jl’u/f:,

<‘¢uar"'¢/!’/)@n//éd"/uj§ JLU”/K&,/{/{JTJ‘/

&:}:&fdﬂ'/’?ﬁ;/bl

_eJuﬁ}&a/;&/'éijﬁﬁgmlL (J?}chf)uylfmﬂ/gl’fﬁ% :d/‘:/?d:{ :/.‘37)5{/:6% :]/"-{/IUUM:LJL/JL
Fas

G EE b P A s

FEaTg

_ug/"..(?liil.:/f‘ub:)/:lbad}i;ul/{{df&{l’};l/"él

I3

e $x S FonS T wze L B L b Y 2019 gz B0L 3 HIMToAL e il gy FS ST

—x

- LS Sy P et Sl St WL 5T
AT
el &M&éi}lg ‘”});Mu"f" 224
2018 06 -/ A s

59
-



60

N\

A2 (36 L
e LU0 BP LUl 20180230208 SFOLEOIGIGUELS Zunt 1 2ys o E 8

d/b,.d&l’df;

,Lu?f/?/h}idm,,;&b G S L Jatpith e flor ot

u@{/dk/}'b‘c/{/(

~Uie b é:obyiigzﬂwgll‘.é ﬁJgf‘;}f_‘{/{/KJﬁ/

e

e R 2o bt G S8 G ATt L1 el QP S SASAE St

:;lg:lar

-‘_jj'ézLLz{/)’q Pl bl

L}“JJ@?:U/
Gt F st b s FL U (note- 4190 KT Sl e VTIAL ST e bt St

(IFRS) g LI 0Ic
UL LG Ll B WS ] 2l

(@KJ;}"@"I)
<‘Q~U7gﬁc%/’):/c’ 2l ?(gy@uﬂ{:‘ﬂbﬁﬁ}f&"}

J"ud/p/((g/bl

107,052 UFtinzrl Setimzrl FIbL Fe 8 i B 128 e S loateadS T FEL et ettty G 53TL b
LS A BIEIIT L e s8N L eI VoG e sa TALBT S r b bl il

Eo 6y s i} Lo g LA P e S C ST ST b Sl S b S b s Sl s bl
AL L Sog b el iz nZ SESSrL e in L Hns AL L SN d Lt i oSk e§ 30 S
L2

G =3 5T e sy Mot eKa NS B G e Bt 2018 U fepn B Ve e o LK ST S 6 L =i
_‘45?,5uu:wv’JJ§‘/ Ul L sy 1 el polis) ne 2018

Sl san ¥

zf(u bt w18 Sk B /,vgjfu‘}fﬁmu AU P A MUTEL Pl eeg KT R e ST
YDA Al e 0 g P S o KIS o353

(eI LIz 2

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 S
0.191 21.974 443.604 540.948 1,234.768 1,728,459 & s sl
15.363 9.910 - - - - Py AT
16.034 4.739 (211.063) (63.965) (73.401) 2984 L el Ee s
13.454 242.183 675.842 928.706 933.611 979.040 L TR
844.020 620.350 - . . . oy S 2L e
(741.671) (787.600) (816.970) (625.212) (592.182) (535.519) & a e %4
103.08% 14.86% (47.6%) (11.8%) (5.9%) 0.2% B
0.35:1 0.28:1 0.21:1 0.34:1 0.28:1 0.35:1 AT 3
4.44 3.87 (17.23) (10.84) (9.74) (7.85) & PNy
0.53 0.16 (7.04) (2.13) (2.45) 0.10 & AR

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil NI e FEoide iy



ICC Textiles Limited

/ 4

sud Fel 557
A < U0
bl 7(»
L 4
&J;.’u/)’..//b
*

e Sl S g s ST 306Gl 20180230 fla b A AT

&K 3
Gesn4.739 B Fose et 31788 23 8AUE TR 016038 G Eamss Lot 15.363 e s i8S i

&5 15,363,305 =5} G
& 3,205,991 56 G
& 23,843,503 s &
& 49,638,352 2SI
& 90,251,125 daitahs 250 g1 et
L 13,821,444 Sk S o- B
Lu 2,212,151 Aok P ot
L 16,033,595 e B
&1 741,670,613 A3 o sz
o 0.53 ol

e 07l s

ol Fe o AL e Heblmelp e i b2l i JLOBL Sass Msporpm Sy & s e Vs et
S gl E e st phn S UId Ut 2017 045 sbitelbr™F et flud & ot S K d Ut NS St v L Sl
Py Aiton Pt ) e sy M MBS B IB S 2 s
:Lmulﬁuligb;w{dwul&EKnglumLJvde

e les 08 b ess J3H S ) .

-u’"g_uu:* 9.910 U 2017 g o 15363047 Uiadin it .

B 10045308 2017 2¢ bn3olke 5,090,251 Stk hiome SUBUE “Bppad™ gl 4 rdii & .

e JeFr s o 4.910 TS be o d bt ualhs .

e Pt 32.008L WAL Fomd Jo .

Sl 5.765 uTbnac Ma¥E el n F .

eSSl 76316 L F .

Wt 8 PP L e F5 4 .

e FBb et ST s e o s WL 6L 2017 LEE .

:«W}lu'(,}i :/GJJW

Sl Gt et i i $en oSS b L crfszn S ) el s fy e o $AL S Se b f L n fpyi sy a2y p L cind SRS
Satog S B 1B it B S e re 2620 ES e st AL LB RING e i b B S
G Eer N L LS WA RS RS i A B S L

e begeibhe e Pl bl sh gimite A EgE Sl 4

JQJW;/;IgtKAI

—e guﬁégt;du?Ku?z_v_un:ah“/c-‘&f*’wﬁz_nusf/;c},;mulug&g@wz&@uz_n;m?g;uwm&@yﬁiélL~J_~d;/)}{;|;ﬁlrtﬁridvdu

61
-



